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Introduction

Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited ("AICTPL") operates two major container
terminal facilities—CT-3 and CT-3 Extension (the “Terminals”)—at Mundra Port in Gujarat, with
the annual capacity of 3.1 MTEUSs. It is @ 50:50 joint venture between Adani Ports and Special
Economic Zone Limited (APSEZ) and Mundi Limited (a subsidiary of Terminal Investment Limited
Holding S.A.). AICTPL had been assigned rating of BBB- (stable outlook) by S&P, BBB- (negative
outlook) by Fitch and Baa3 (negative outlook) by Moody's.

1. Performance Highlights (FY2020-21 ie. FY21)
AICTPL FY21 performance remained stellar. The Key highlights are as follows.

- AICTPL has become the largest container terminal in India in FY21 due to robust cargo
volumes growth of 48% Y-0-Y to 2.63 mn TEUs. Mediterranean Shipping Company (MSC)
continues to be the biggest customer of AICTPL with 73% share in overall cargo volumes.

- AICTPLUs all-India market share increased from 10.1% in FY20 to 15% in FY21

- AICTPL clocked volumes of 0.30 mn TEUs in Mar 21 - This is the highest-ever monthly
volumes by any container terminal in India

- AICTPL also handled highest ever vessel size with 13,142 TEUs volumes in Jan 2021.

The above indicate that there has been no major impact of Covid-19 on AICTPLs business
and operations.

Projected v/s Actual Performance

Cargo Volumes (mn TEUSs) EBITDA (INR mn)

6,896

2.63 2.64
6,663
2.04
I 5,853
Projected Actual Projected Projected Actual (FY21) Projected

(FY21) (FY21) (FY22) (FY21) (FY22)

For the 12 months period ended March 31, 2021, Actual Cargo Volumes is 2.63 million TEUs as
compared to 2.04 million TEUs projected. Further, Actual EBITDA is INR 6,663 million as
compared to INR 5,853 million projected. (Projected figures are as submitted to the Rating
Agencies at the time of initial rating of USD 300 million Senior Secured Notes,)
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2. Summary of Covenants Compliance

AICTPL has achieved following ratios:

Summary of the Covenant

Particulars Stipulated March-21

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) (Refer Annexure: 1) 1.90* 3.14

Project Life Cover Ratio (PLCR) (Refer Annexure: 2) 1.95 3.98
*for maximum distribution level

Covenants Matrix

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR)

3.50
3.14
3.00
2.50
2.00 1.90
1.70
150 1.50
1.10
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e 75% Distribution Level

The Actual DSCR of 3.14x is for the 12 months period ended March 31, 2021.

A.3 Project Life Cover Ratio (PLCR)

4.50
4.00 ¢ 3.98
3.50
3.00
2.50
2.00 1.95
1.50
1.00
0.50
0.00
5% 8 § %38 33488 %8 855 8 8§ % 8 3
= P CR Covenant Actual PLCR

The Actual PLCR of 3.98x is the Debt Sizing Cover as on March 31, 2021 from NPV of a) the
EBITDA Forecast until the termination date of the Concession Agreement; b) residual value of
assets of the Company and c) cash or cash equivalents, other than cash standing to the credit
of the Senior Debt Restricted Amortization Account, the Senior Debt Service Reserve Account,

the Senior Debt Restricted Reserve Account and the Senior Debt Redemption Account.
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3. Update of Creation, Perfection and Registration of Collateral

In accordance with Clause 7.18 of the note trust deed dated 21 December 2020 (as amended
and/or supplemented from time to time, the “Note Trust Deed”) made between (1) Adani
International Container Terminal Private Limited (the “Issuer”) and (2) the Note Trustee, the
security creation is divided in two parts — a) Security Creation by “Initial Security Longstop
Date” and b) Security Creation by “Second Security Longstop Date”. Status of each is as
follows-

a) Security Creation by “Initial Security Longstop Date”
The Company has completed the security creation within the timelines of Initial Security
Longstop Date. The list of security created includes the followings-

i) Deed of Hypothecation which include charge over movable fixed assets, current
assets, receivables, Project Account Deed, Company'’s rights under Infrastructure
Services and Port facilities agreements, rail services agreement, etc.

i) APSEZ Undertaking in relation to the rights, title, interests and benefits of the
Company.

i) Non Disposal Undertaking by the shareholders in respect of 100% equity and
preference capital of the Company.

b) Security Creation by “Second Security Longstop Date”
As per Note Trust Deed, the security over immovable property, immovable fixed assets
and core assets needs to be created and perfected by the Company within a period of
180 days from the date on which the Company procures the relevant consents or
approvals.

As per the Note Trust Deed terms, the Company has executed non-disposal undertaking
until creation and perfection of such security interests.
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4. Computation of Operating Account Waterfall and Distribution amount as
per Note Trust Deed

Particulars INR mn Source
Opening Cash Balance (excluding reserves) 970.35 | WN 1

(+) Operating Revenue 12,330.05 | WN 2

(-) Operating Expenses -5,332.11 | WN 3

(+/-) Working Capital Changes : (Increase) / Decrease 254,77 | WN 4

(-) Taxes Paid -574.13 | CF Statement
(-) Capital Expenditure -91.43 | CF Statement
I. Cash Flow Available for Debt Service 7,557.50

(-) Debt Service -1,056.07 | WN 5

(-) Interest Service -1,465.80 | WN 6

Il. Total Debt Service -2,521.87

Reserve Funding

(-) Creation of Sr. Debt Service Reserve Account -808.39 | WN 8

(-) Investment in Capital Expenditure Reserve Account -122.20 | MIS

Ill. Total Reserve Funding -930.59

Cash Flow Available post Debt Service and Reserve

Creation (I-11-111) 4.105.04

Other Cash Flows

(+) Release of Opening DSRA on bank debt prepaid 25.00 | Note 10 of FS
(+) Remaining proceeds of Bonds** after prepayments 7.52 | MIS

() Interest Payment on ICD/SH Loans* (Before Bonds** 45162 | WN 7
Issuance)

(-) Repayment of SH Loans * (Before Bonds** Issuance) -900.00 | MIS

(-) Funds earmarked for prudent liquidity (1 months opex) -444.34

Cash Available for Distribution 2,341.60

Amount transferred to Distribution Account 1,814.52

Net Cash Available for transfer to Distribution Account 527.08

Cash Reconciliation

Cash & Cash Equivalents 604.48 | BS Statement
Bank Balances 68.30 | BS Statement
Short Term Investments in Mutual Funds 298.64 | BS Statement
Total Cash Balance 971.42

Out of this

Funds earmarked for prudent liquidity (1 months opex) 444,34

Net Cash Available for transfer to Distribution Account 527.08

Total Cash Balance 971.42

*|CD: Inter-Corporate Deposits ; SH Loans: Shareholders Loans,; ** Bonds: USD 300 million Senior Secured Notes
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S. Form of Compliance Certificate

Citicorp International Limited (the “Note Trustee")
20/F Citi Tower
One Bay East
83 Hoi Bun Road
Kwun Tong
Kowloon
Hong Kong
Fax no.: +852 2323 0279
Attention: Agency & Trust
June 22, 2021

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen

ADANI INTERNATIONAL CONTAINER TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of India with limited liability)
US$300,000,000 3.00 per cent. Senior Secured Notes due 2031

In accordance with Clause 7.6 of the note trust deed dated 21 December 2020 (as amended
and/or supplemented from time to time, the "Note Trust Deed”) made between (1) Adani
International Container Terminal Private Limited (the “Issuer”) and (2) the Note Trustee, we
hereby certify and, in the case of paragraph (h) below, confirm, on behalf of the Issuer, that:

©) as at the Calculation Date, the aggregate amount for transfer to the Distribution
Account in accordance with the Operating Account Waterfall and the Distribution
Conditions is INR 971.42 million

(b) in accordance with the workings set out in the attached Annexure 1, the Debt Service
Cover Ratio for the Calculation Period ending on the relevant Calculation Date was
3.14:1 times
(c) in accordance with the workings set out in the attached Annexure 2, the Project Life
Cover Ratio for the Calculation Period ending on the relevant Calculation Date was
3.98:1 times
(d) as at the Calculation Date, the cash balance in each of the Project Accounts is as follows:
Bank Account | Amount
S. No. | Account Name Numbers (INR mn)
1 Operating Account 41233610601 248.09
2 Statutory Reserve Account 41233610602 Nil
3 Senior Debt Service Reserve Account 41233610603 Nil
4 Capital Expenditure Reserve Account 41233610604 Nil
5 Senior Debt Redemption Account 41233610605 Nil
6 Senior Debt Restricted Amortization Account 41233610606 Nil
7 Subordinated Debt Service Reserve Accounts 41233610607 Nil
8 Senior Debt Restricted Reserve Account 41233610608 Nil
9 Surplus Holdings Accounts 41233610609 Nil
10 Distributions Account 41233610610 Nil
11 Enforcement Proceeds Account 41233610611 Nil
(e) the amount of Capital Expenditure undertaken or forecast to be undertaken by the

Company in the six-month period commencing on the relevant Calculation Date is
INR 743.54 million (p/ease refer Note WN 9 in Appendix for further details)
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f Our EBITDA for the Calculation Period ending on the relevant Calculation Date is
INR 6,663 million

(9) No refinancing plan during the six-month period commencing from 31t March 2021;
(h) to the best of our knowledge having made due enquiry, no Default subsists.

Terms not defined herein shall have the same meanings as provided in the Note Trust Deed and
the Conditions.

This certificate and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it shall
be governed by and construed in accordance with English law.

Yours faithfully
UNMESH Digitally signed by UNMESH

MADHUSUDAN = 0t s 131025
ABHYANKAR +0530°
By:_Unmesh Abhyankar
Director
Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited

Digitally signed by
SAN DEEP SANDEEP MEHTA

Date: 2021.06.25
M EHTA 13:11:55 +05'30'
By:_Sandeep Mehta

Director
Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited
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Annexure 1

Workings for calculation of Debt Service Cover Ratio

INR Mn  Source
Apr-Mar
21

“Debt Service Cover Ratio” or "“DSCR" means, in relation to a
Calculation Period ending on the relevant Calculation Date, the
ratio of (i) Cash Flow Available for Debt Service plus any opening
cash carried forward from the previous Calculation Date in the
Operating Account to (ii) the sum of scheduled principal repayment
(excluding any amounts refinanced, prepaid or voluntarily repaid
and/or any amounts falling due under an overdraft or revolving
facility which were available for simultaneous redrawing), interest
payments to Senior Creditors and payments of any Costs (of
recurring nature) to Senior Creditors in relation to Senior Debt due
or accrued during that period.

3.14

“Cash Flow Available for Debt Service” or "CFADS"” means, in

(i) respect of any period, the aggregate amount of CFADS Operating
Revenue for that period (which, for the avoidance of doubt,
includes (i) any Terminal Value and (ii) interest revenue accrued on
all Accounts (including the Distributions Account, to the extent any
such interest is transferred to the Operating Account) to the extent
not already included in CFADS Operating Revenue), less:

7394

(a) Operating Expenses paid in that period, other than any other
operating expenses (including any Costs or fees payable in
connection with the Existing Indebtedness, the Senior Secured
Documents or any Additional Senior Debt and any Costs or break
fees payable as a consequence of the repayment or prepayment of
the Existing Indebtedness or any Hedge Termination Payments in
respect of the Existing Indebtedness) funded by Permitted Finance
Debt, equity contributions, any Sponsor Affiliate Debt or amounts
withdrawn from an Account in accordance with the Primary Debt
Documents or this Deed;

(5332) WN3

CF
(b) Taxes paid by the Company in that period; and (574) Statem
ent

(c) Amounts paid to the Security Trustee, each Representative
under the Senior Secured Documents and any third party paying,
transfer, or listing agents or registrars in relation to the Senior Debt,

in each case for paragraph (b) and (c) of this definition, without
double counting.

Opening cash carried forward from the previous Calculation Date

in the Operating Account 970 WN1

“CFADS Operating Revenue” means Operating Revenue excluding
(without double counting): 12,330
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(i)

Total Operating Revenue

(3) non-recurring significant items (including but not limited to
profits or losses on disposal of assets outside the ordinary course
of business);

(b) extraordinary items (including but not limited to profits or losses
on termination of any Secured Hedging Agreement);

(c) net payments received under any Secured Hedging Agreements;

(d) any other non-cash items (including but not limited to property
revaluations);

(e) insurance proceeds, other than business interruption insurance
proceeds or advance consequential loss of profit insurance
proceeds or any proceeds applied towards reimbursement for
repairs or reinstatement of an asset where the cost of the relevant
repair or reinstatement is an Operating Expense; and

(f) proceeds of any Finance Debt or equity.

the sum of scheduled principal repayment (excluding any amounts
refinanced, prepaid or voluntarily repaid and/or any amounts falling
due under an overdraft or revolving facility which were available for
simultaneous redrawing), interest payments to senior creditors and
payments of any costs of recurring nature to senior creditors in
relation to senior debt due or accrued during that period.

(a) Scheduled principal repayment

(b) Interest payments to Senior Creditors (incl finance costs)

12330 WN?2

2,354

1,056

1,298

WN 5

WN 6

TiL
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Annexure 2

Workings for the Project Life Cover Ratio As on

Mar 31 2021

the net present value (discounted using the Discount Rate (as defined in the

respective Primary Debt Documents)) of the sum of EBITDA Forecast until

the termination of the Concession Agreement, plus any residual value of the

assets of the Company (including (i) cash or cash equivalents, other than

cash standing to the credit of the Senior Debt Restricted Amortization 3.98
Account, the Senior Debt Service Reserve Account, the Senior Debt

Restricted Reserve Account and the Senior Debt Redemption Account); (ii)

the Terminal Value; and (iii) any other indemnity or other payment due under

the Concession Agreement); to

the Senior Debt minus any cash or cash equivalents standing to the credit
of the Senior Debt Restricted Amortization Account, the Senior Debt Service
Reserve Account, the Senior Debt Restricted Reserve Account and the
Senior Debt Redemption Account.

For the purposes of this definition, "Discount Rate” shall mean the weighted
average cost of Senior Debt outstanding on the date on which the Project
Life Cover Ratio is calculated.

“Calculation Date” means each 31 March and 30 September occurring on or
after 31 March 2021.

INR mn
Year Mar-21 | Mar-22 | Mar-23 | Mar-24 Mar-25 | Mar-26
EBIDTA 6,871 7,274 7,692 8,072 8,508
Residual Value of assets (RV) - - - - - -
(i) Cash or Cash equivalents 971 - - - - -
(ii) Terminal Value - - - - - -
EBDITA + RV 971 6,871 7,274 7,692 8,072 8,508
Year Mar-27 | Mar-28 | Mar-29 | Mar-30 | 16-Feb-31
EBIDTA 8,985 9,453 9,976 10,552 9,655
Residual Value of assets (RV) - - - - -
(i) Cash or Cash equivalents - - - - -
(ii) Terminal Value - - - - 12,789
EBDITA + RV 8,985 9,453 9,976 | 10,552 22,443
Discount Rate 3.00%
NPV of EBIDTA 83,980
Senior Debt O/s (Gross) 21,933
(-) Sr DSRA (SDSRA) 807
Senior Debt O/s (Net) 21,126

10



adani

Logistics
= Tl e Ay

Appendix: Working Notes

‘ Particulars INR mn Source / Remarks

WN 1: Opening Cash Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents 920.85 | Balance Sheet
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 49.50 | Note 10 of FS
970.35

WN 2: Operating Revenue

Revenue from Operations 11,998.27 | P&L Statement
Other Income Received 117.64 | Working below
(+/-) Realised Forward Gain / (Loss) on Forward Receivables 21415 | MIS
& Payables

12,330.05

Other Income Received

Other Income 150.58 | P&L Statement

(+) Interest Accrued (Opening) 4,92 | Note 6 of FS

() Interest Accrued (Closing) -14.12 | Note 6 of FS

(-) Excess provision written back -3.26 | Note 21 0of FS

() IT Refund (netted off with Taxes Paid) -20.49 | Note 21 of FS
117.64

WN 3: Operating Expenses

Operating Expenses 2,701.17 | P&L Statement

Revenue Sharing Expense 2,234.30 | P&L Statement

Employee Benefits Expense 138.81 | P&L Statement

Other Expenses 261.53 | P&L Statement

(-) Loss on discard of Property, Plant and Equipment -3.71 | CF Statement
5,332.11

WN 4: Movement in Working Capital: (Increase) / Decrease

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables -104.83 | CF Statement
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories -4,99 | CF Statement
(Increase) / Decrease in Financial Assets 9.26 | CF Statement
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets 524,76 | CF Statement
(Decrease) in Trade Payables -722.95 | CF Statement
Increase in Other Liabilities 162.14 | CF Statement
Increase in Provisions 3.39 | CF Statement
Increase in Financial Liabilities 465.04 | CF Statement
Infrastructure Usage Rights Charges -46.91 | P&L Statement
Payment For Principal Portion of Lease Obligation -30.13 | CF Statement
254.77

WN 5: Debt Service

Scheduled Repayment (Citi US$ 180 facility in Sep 20) 1,056.07 | MIS
Repayment of Senior Secured Notes 0.00
Total Debt Service 1,056.07

11
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WN 6: Finance Cost (Accured)

Total Finance Costs 1,493.01 | Note 24 of FS
Finance charges payable on lease obligations -56.17 | Note 24 of FS
Interest on Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) -785.14 | Note 24 of FS
Interest on Income Taxes -11.11 | Note 24 of FS
Inflow/(Outflow) on settlement of Derivative Contracts 656.98 | MIS

Finance Cost on Sr. Borrowings (Accrued) 1,297.57

Finance Cost on Sr. Borrowings (Payment) | 1,465.80 | MIS

WN 7: Interest Payment on Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD)

Interest Accrued on ICD (Opening) 390.90 | MIS

Interest on Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) 785.14 | Note 24 of FS
Interest Accrued on ICD (Closing) 525.38 | MIS
(Inflow)/Outflow on settlement of Derivative Contracts -86.43 | MIS

Interest payment on Inter Corporate Deposit 564.23

() Interest payment post bond issuance 112.61 | MIS

Interest payment prior to bond issuance 451.62

WN 8: DSRA Calculation

DSRA Required on Senior Secured Notes

Principal Due in next 6 months (Apr-Sep 21) 438.66

Interest Due in next 6 months (Apr-Sep 21) 329.00

Total DSRA Required 767.66

DSRA Created 808.39

WN9: Capex Reserve Breakup
Capex Reserve .
Particulars (lﬁlps::‘) Created Resern\;\eor('::ﬁatlon
(INR mn)
Capital Expenditure Forecast for Apr21to
Sep 21 Period (as on 31st Mar 2021) 122.10 122.20 Mar-21
Additional Capital Expenditure of INR
2,486 million (USD 34 million) on new
equipment (RMQC & RTGC) approved in
A?)r 21 Boar(d Meeting. (252/0 apdpvance of 621.44 631.70 May-21
this additional capital expenditure is
payable between Apr 21 to Sep 21 period)
Total 743,54 753.90

12
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6. Form of Certificate of Directors

Citicorp International Limited (the “Note Trustee")
20/F Citi Tower
One Bay East
83 Hoi Bun Road
Kwun Tong
Kowloon
Hong Kong
Fax no.: +852 2323 0279
Attention: Agency & Trust
June 22, 2021

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen

ADANI INTERNATIONAL CONTAINER TERMINAL PRIVATE LIMITED
(incorporated in the Republic of India with limited liability)
US$300,000,000 3.00 per cent. Senior Secured Notes due 2031

In accordance with Clause 7.5 of the note trust deed dated 21 December 2020 (as amended
and/or supplemented from time to time, the "Note Trust Deed”) made between (1) Adani
International Container Terminal Private Limited (the “Issuer”) and (2) the Note Trustee, we, as
Directors of the Issuer, hereby confirm that, having made all reasonable enquiries, to the best of
the knowledge, information and belief of the Issuer that as at date not more than five days
before the date of this certificate (the “Certification Date"):

3) as at 22" June 2021, no Event of Default or Potential Event of Default had occurred
since last certification 215t December 2020 (issuance of Senior Secured Notes)

(b) from 21%t December 2020 (i.e. Senior Secured Notes issuance date) and including 22"
June 2021, the Issuer has complied in all respects with its obligations under the Note
Trust Deed and the Notes.

This certificate and any non-contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with it shall
be governed by and construed in accordance with English law.

Terms not defined herein shall have the same meanings as provided in the Note Trust Deed.

Yours faithfully

UNMESH Digitally signed by UNMESH
MADHUSUDAN MADHUSUDAN ABHYANKAR

Date: 2021.06.25 13:11:00

ABHYANKAR +0530°

By:_ Unmesh Abhyankar
Director
Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited

Digitally signed by
SAN DEEP SANDEEP MEHTA

Date: 2021.06.25
M EHTA 13:11:25 +05'30'
By: Sandeep Mehta

Director
Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited

13
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S R B C & (,D iip 21st Floor, B Wing, Privilon

Ambli BRT Road, Behind Iskcon Temple
Chartered Accountants Off SG Highway, Ahmedabad - 380 059, India

Tel :+91 79 6608 3900

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Adani International Container
Terminal Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021,
the Statement of Profit and Loss. including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the Ind
AS financial statements. including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2021. its profit including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards en Auditing
(SAs). as specitied under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thercunder.,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial yvear ended March 31, 2021. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below.,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Ind
AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly. our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below. provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accorapanying Ind AS financial statements.

9/

SREBC&COLLP, aLimited Liability Partoership vath LLP Identity No. AAB 4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block ‘8", 3rd Floor, Kalkata-700 016
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Key audit matters

How our aundit addressed the key aundit matter

(a) Impact of Foreien Exchange Fluctuations:

As at year-end. the Company has outstanding
borrowings of X 2.75.695.43 lacs comprising Senior
Secured Foreign Currency Bonds and Loan from
Shareholders.

Of the above borrowings. X 2,37.138.63 lacs
(Equivalent of USD 324.36 million) are USD

borrowings or USD denominated borrowings (net ot

repayment of X 2.25.887.39 lacs (Equivalent of USD
299.01 million) and new borrowing of 217.442.80
lacs (Equivalent of USD 300 million).

The Company’s USD borrowings remain unhedged
and consequent exposure to forex rates fluctuation
due to volatility of US$ / INR forex rates.

For the year ended March 31. 2021, the Company
has recognised forex (gain) of X (8.410.25 lacs)
(Previous vear forex loss of £22.015.70 lacs).

Considering the significant impact of foreign
exchange gain / loss on the Company. the same is
considered as key audit matter.

We have performed the following audit procedures.
not limited to following—

a. We assessed the Company’s foreign
currency translation policy for recognition
of exchange [fluctuations on foreign
currency borrowings.

b. We understood. evaluated and tested. on
sample basis. the design and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over
recognition and measurement of exchange
fluctuations (fluctuations) on borrowings.

We reviewed the details of USD
borrowings transactions entered (receipt/
re-payment) by the Company and as
recorded in the books of account.

o

d. We understood from the management the
source of Foreign exchange rates used to
record the Foreign exchange transactions in
the books of account i.e. Foreign exchange
rates released by FEDAI (Foreign
Exchange Dealers Association of India)

from time to time to value the USD
borrowings restatement or settlement
transactions.

e.  We tested the foreign currency borrowings
translation transactions and tested the
measurement and recognition of gain / loss
arising on reinstatement/  settlement
(translation) of such borrowings during the
vear ended on March 31, 2021

f.  Obtained external balance confirmation of
outstanding borrowings as at year end.

g. We assessed the disclosure made on
Foreign Currency Risk assessments and for
compliance and completeness of disclosure
requirements as per Ind AS 107/ Schedule
i
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

b) Accounting and valuation of Derivative contracts:

During the year. the Company has entered into
derivative contracts equivalent to USD 483.3
million in the nature of Foreign Currency Forward
Contracts, Interest Rate Swaps. [INR-Foreign
Currency Swap Contract.

The derivative transactions are entered to mitigate/
manage currency risk on Revenue Contracts and
Interest rate risk on Rupee Borrowings.

4
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As at March 31. 2021, the Company has open
derivative contracts equivalent to USD 91.67
million.

The recognition and measurement of Derivative
contracts (fair valuation) involve an element of
estimation/ judgement based on external inputs for
valuation of transactions.

Considering Company has significant derivative
transactions involving accounting based on change
in fair valuation of derivative contracts, the resultant
recognition of gain / loss is area of significant risk
estimates and judgements. having material impact on
the Company’s financial performance and thus an
areas of significant attention as key audit matter.

During the year March 31. 2021, the Company has
recognised (gain) of T 7.439.35 lacs (Previous vear
loss of % 7.467.93 lacs)

We have performed the following audit procedures.
not limited to following —

We assessed the Company's accounting
policy for measurement of valuation of
dertvative contracts and recognition of
resultant gain / loss due to change in fair
value of derivative contracts.

We understood, evaluated and tested, on
sample basis, the design and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over
recognition and measurement of fair value
of derivative contracts.

We wverified the details of derivative
contracts transactions booked (including
roll-over) and cancelled / settled by the
Company and as recorded in the books of
account.

d. We understood from the management
valuation techniques used to record the
Mark-to-Market  value of Derivative
Contracts in the books of i.e. valuation
certificate obtained from the Banks /
Authorised Dealers from time to time to
value the derivative contracts booked
(including roll-over) and cancelled / settled
transactions.

e. We tested details on sample basis of
Derivative transactions booked (including
roll-over) and cancelled / settled during the
year and recognisition of gain / loss due to
change in fair valuation of derivative
contracts on Mark-to-Market / settlement
(cancellation) during the vear ended on
March 31, 2021.

Obtained external balance confirmation of
fair valuation of outstanding derivative
contracts from banks / authorised dealers to
vouch the wvalvation of outstanding
derivatives.
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Key andit matters

How our audit addressed the key andit matter

g

We included our valuation experts to
perform an independent reassessment of the
valuation of derivative contract on sample
basis:

gl

h. We assessed disclosure made with respect
to outstanding derivative contracts and
financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Company and compliance
and  completeness  with  disclosure
requirements as per Schedule Il and Ind AS

[ 107.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for Information Other than the Financial Statements
and Auditor’s Report thereon. The Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report thereon comprises the Directors Report. but does not include the Ind AS financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon and. in doing so. consider
whether such Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. [f, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
thereon. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position. financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specitied under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended including amendment
Rules, 2020. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design.
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
mrisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

N4
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In preparing the Ind AS financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Company are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Aunditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements. whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are
inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

\
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31. 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when. in extremely rare
circumstances. we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

|.  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specitied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(¢c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2013. as amended including amendment Rules. 2020

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31. 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 to this report;

(2) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2021.
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 30 to the Ind AS financial statements:

1. The Company has made provision. as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards. for material foreseeable losses. if any. on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts — Refer Note 34 to the Ind AS financial statement;

iti.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

O P

[')er Navin Agrawal f/ >/ N
Partner ‘
Membership Number: 56102 "\

UDIN: 21056 102ZAAAAAT2308
Place: Bengaluru % N
Date: April 27. 2021 A
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph on Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of
our report of even date

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) Property Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(¢) According to information and explanations given by the management the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the Company except immovable properties

aggregating X 191.815.96 lacs as at March 31, 2021 for which title deeds of the immovable
properties/ lease agreements are not duly registered in the Company's name. pending
conclusion of Sub-Concession Agreement with Government Authorities since August 2012.
The details are as follows:

(Amount in X Lacs)

Name of Asset Gross Block Net Block
Leasehold Land 39,666.22 26.760.87
Building (Back up yard) 54,772.60 47.110.53
Marine Structure 07.377.14 85.831.30
Total 191,815.96 1,59,702.20

(i1) The management has conducted physical verification of stores and spares inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ii1) (a). (b) and (¢) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans.
investments. guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186
of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions ot clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained. the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services
rendered by the Company.

(vii) (a)The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund. employvees™ state insurance. income-tax, duty of custom. goods and
service tax. cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us. no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance. income-tax. duty of custom. goods and
service tax. cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the vear end. for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax. on account of
dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of the dues | Amount | Period to | Forum where the dispute is
statute (= in | which the | pending

lacs) amount

relates

Income Tax | Income Tax =¥ 1 2012-13 Commissioner of Income Tax
Act. 1961 (Including Interest) (Appeals)
Income Tax | Interest  on  Tax 75.27 | 2013-14 High Court of Gujarat since
Act, 1961 Deducted at Source November, 2017
Income Tax | Income Tax 436 | 2016-17 Income  Tax Appellate
Act. 1961 Tribunal. 2020
Income Tax | Income Tax SFE 201718 Commissioner of Income Tax
Act, 1961 (Including Interest) (Appeals)

* Net of adjustment of Income Tax Refund of Rs.1.175.69 lacs pertaining to FY 2014-15. FY 2015-
16 and FY 18-19 adjusted by the Income Tax Department against the demand.

**Net of adjustment of Income Tax Refund of Rs. 552.99 lacs pertaining to FY 2017-18 and FY 18-
19 adjusted by the Income Tax Department against the demand.

(viit)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to any banks and financial
institutions or dues to debenture holders. The Company does not have any outstanding dues to the
government during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management. the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loans and debt instruments in the nature
of foreign currency bond for the purposes tor which they were raised. The Company has not raised
any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer during the vear.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on the company by the officers
and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of section
197 read with Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to the Company and hence reporting under
clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(xii) In our opinion. the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore. the provisions of clause 3(xii) of

the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xifi) ,According to the information and explanations given by the management. transactions with the

5]

related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act. 2013 where applicable and
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(x1v)

(xv)

(xvi)

the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of sec 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly
reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence. reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and. not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us. the provisions of section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

IV N & CON

pl)r Navin Agrawal
Partner

Membership Number: 56102

UDIN: 21056102AAAAAT2308

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 27, 2021 Ne—
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Ind-AS Financial
Statements of Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Adani International Container
Terminal Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act. 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act. 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and. both issued
by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference
to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also.
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31,2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

ForSRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

MR
I

per Navin Agrawal {/ &/ \
Partner |
Membership Number: 56102 \ ;
UDIN: 21056102AAAAAT2308 ; e
Place: Bengaluru :
Date: April 27. 2021 o




Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

adcd=ami

€lin Lacs

f As at As at
PRl Nptes March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Assets
Non-Current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 3(a) 269,960,02 285,061.84
Right-of-use assets 3(c) 84,166.70 92,669.49
Capital work-in-progress 3(b) 40.71 231.29
Intangible Assets 3(a) 195.46 223.41
Financial Assets
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 9,430.52 133.39
Other Non-Current Assets 7 6,186.08 8,026.41
369,979.49 386,345.83
Current assets
Inventories 8 520.43 470.55
Financial Assets
() Investments 4 2986.38 -
(ii) Trade Receivables 5 338331 2,334.99
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 6.044.82 9,208.51
(iv) Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 10 683.00 745,00
(v) Other Financial Assets 6 860.10 1.829.45
Other Current Assets ¥ 5,500.77 10,279.30
19,978.81 24,867.80
Total Assets 389,958.30 411,213.63
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Equity Share Capital 1 64,446.36 64,446.36
Other Equity 12 (7,725.08) (48,873.43)
Total Equity 56,721.28 15,572.93
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 228,440.93 245,842,115
(i) Lease Liabilities 14 6,160.99 6,507.09
(iii} Other Financial Liabilities 15 2.294.16 14,328.42
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 17 25,486.76 30,140.59
262,382.84 296,818.25
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 13 - 150.00
(i) Lease Liabilities 14 346.10 30133
(i) Trade and Other Payables
(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 19 - -
small enterprises
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 19 5,867.03 12,538.13
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 15 59,702.05 83,049.00
Other Current Liabilities 18 4,204.46 2.615.61
Provisions 16 188.01 168.38
Current Tax Liabilities (net) 546,53 -
70,854.18 98,822.45
Total Liabilities 333,237.02 395,640.70
389,958.30 411,213.63

Total Equity And Liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financials statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBCECOLLP

Firm Registration No.: 324982E / E300003
Chartered Accountants

O

er Navin Agrawal
Partner
Membership No, 56102

Place: Bengaluru {12\
Date: April 27, 2021

Date: April 27, 2021

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
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Capt, Sandeep Mehta
Director
DIN: 00897409

lace: Mumbai
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ayur Shah
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m

Place: Ahmedabad

Unmesh Abhygnkar
Director
DIN: 0304081

Place: Ahmedabad




Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

aci=mi

Foemr it aarin
T S

Tin Lacs
For the year For the year
Particulars Notes ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Income

Revenue from Operations 20 119.982.69 92,826.02

Other Income 21 1,505.77 979.98
Total Income 121,488.46 93,806.00
Expenses

Operating Expenses 211 27,01.73 22,159.11

Revenue Sharing Expense 21.2 22,343.04 16177.34

Employee Benefits Expense 22 1.388.1 1,401.65

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 3@ . (c) 24,370.32 24,315.00

Foreign Exchange / Derivatives (Gain) / Loss (net) 23 (14,736.44) 25,571.18

Finance Costs 24 13,796.66 22,481.23

Infrastructure Usage Rights Charges 469.05 470.33

Other Expenses 25 2.615.28 2,505.87
Total Expense 77.257.75 115,081.71
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 4423071 (21,275.71)
Tax Expense:

Current Tax 26 7.750.41 -

Tax charge relating to earlier years 26 - 88.46

Deferred Tax charge 26 3,091.61 6,255.61

Less: Tax (credit) under Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 26 (7.750.41) -
Total Tax Expenses 3,091.61 6,344.07
Profit / (Loss) for the year (A) 41,139.10 (27,619.78)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
ltems that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 14.22 (20.19)

Income Tax (Charge) / Credit (4.97) 7.06
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year net of tax (8 9.25 (13.13)
Tatal Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year (A)+(B) 41,148.35 (27,632.91)
Earnings per Share (EPS) - (Face value of T 10 each)
Basic and Diluted (in ¥) 28 6.38 (4.29)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financials statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP

Firm Registration No.: 324982E / E300003
Chartered Accountants

m Agrawal

Partner
Membership No. 56102

Place: Bengaluru y -
Date: April 27, 2021 I | =

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Soneg hush—,

Capt. Sandeep Mehta

Director
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Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: April 27, 20217

mesh Abhyankar
Director
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Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited SA =i

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021 R
Tin Lacs

Reserves
. Equity Share e Surplus in the
Particulars Capital S;':::;:::.s statement of Total
profit and loss

Balance as on April 01, 20192 64,446.36 4,647.93 (25,888.45) 43,205.84
{Loss) for the year - - (27619.78) (27,619.78)
Other Comprehensive Income - - {13.13 (13.13)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - (27,632.91 (27,632.91)
Balance as on March 31, 2020 64,446.36 4,647.93 (53,521.36 15,572.93
Profit for the year - - 41139.10 41,139.10
QOther Comprehensive Income = - 9.25 9.25
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - - 41,148.35 41,148.35
As at on March 31, 2021 64,446.36 4,647.93 (12,373.01) 56,721.28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBCECOLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Firm Registration No.: 324982E / E300003

Chartered Accountants
u :
Capl:. Sandeep Mehta Un

7

in Agrawal sh Abhyankar
Partner Director Director
Membership No. 56102 DIN: 00897409 DIN: 03040812

Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad

Mayue Shah—"
Company Secretary
Place; Ahmedabad

Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 27, 2021 Date: April 27, 2021
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% In Lacs

Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2021

For the period ended
March 31,2020

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax

Adjustments For;

Loss on discard of Property, Plant and Equipment

Excess Provision Written Back

Depreciation and Amortisation of Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible
assets and right-of-use assets

Finance Income {including change in fair valuation)

Profit on Sale of Current Investments (Net)

Provision for Non-moving Inventory

Allowance for Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired

Finance Expense

Forex (Gain) / Loss on Borrowings and Derivative related to Barrowing (net)
Forex Loss on Capital Creditors

Unrealised {Gain) / Loss on Trade Payables and Other Derivatives
Operating Profit Befare Working Capital Changes

Mevements in Working Capital :

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventaries
Decrease / {Increase) in Financial Assets
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets
{Decrease) / Increase in Trade Payables
Increase in Other Liabilities

Increase in Provisions

Increase / (Decrease) in Financial Liabilities
Cash Generated from Operations

Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refunds)

Net Cash Inflow From Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Payment for Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (Including Capital
work in progress and Capital Advances)

(Purchase) / Proceeds from Sale of Investment in Mutual Funds (net)

Interest Received

(Deposits) /Proceeds from of Margin Money / Other Fixed Deposits With Banks
(net)

Net Cash (Outflow) from Investing Activities

Cash Fliows From Financing Activities

Proceeds Long-Term Borrowing

Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings

Repayment of inter Corporate Deposit

(Proceeds) / Payments on settlement of Derfivative Contracts on borrowings
Payment For Principal Portion of Lease Obligation

Interest and Finance Charges Paid {Including Interest Payment on Lease
Obligation)

Net Cash (Outflow) from Financing Activities

. Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A + B + C)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Component of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Scheduled Bank

- On Current Accounts

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Notes:

44,230.71 (21.275.71)
37,07
(32.55) .
24,370.32 24,315.00
(1.304.21) (379.06)
(41.18) (406.01)
- 2,63
- 45,72
14,930.08 18.546.47
(9.543.67) 25,950.44
- 15,67
(4184.72) 4,234.76
68,461.85 51,049,891
(1,048.32) 1.036.25
(49.88) 51,53
92.56 (53.48)
5,247,58 (2,998.15)
(7.229.54) 6,894,54
1.621.40 326.16
33.85 48.44
4,650.38 (173.47)
71,779.88 56,181.73
(5.741.29) (849.34)
66,038.59 55,332,392
(914.34) (4,757.51)
(2,945.20) 406.01
1,007.36 234,67
{9.243.85) 666.00
(12,096.03) (3,450.83)
280,522.28 3
(255,242.85) (25,472.14)
(61,784,00) (4.300.00)
(5.705.50) 3311.98
{301.23) (265.24)
(14,594.85) (17.032.69)
(57,106.25) (43,758.09)
{3163.69) 8,123.47
9,208.51 1,085.04
6,044.82 9,208.51
2.551.82 2,504.51
3,493.00 6,704,00
6,044.82 9,208.51

(1) The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 on Cash Flow Statements
notified under Section 133 of The Companies Act 2013, read together with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting

Standard) Rules 2015 (as amended),

(2) Purchase of investment in Mutual Fund is ¥ 48,462.49 lacs (previous year T 1,23,210,00 lacs) and sale of investment in

Mutual Fund is T 1,23,616.01 lacs (previous year T 45,517.29 lacs),

(3) Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 an cash flow statements under Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2017 (as amended) is given as per note 14(a),

(4) Cash flow from operating activities includes Paymant for Short-term lease and leases of low value assets not included in the
measurement of the lease liability within operating activities amounts to 2 728.57 lacs.

As per our report of even date
ForSRBCECOLLP
Firm Registration No.: 324982E / E300003

ChartereWcuun:an:s

r Navin Agrawal
Partner
Membership Ne. 56102

Place: Bengaluru
Date: April 27, 2021

Souskesp

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

v

Capt. Sandeep Mehta
Director

DIN: 00897409
Place: Mumbai

n

Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: April 27, 2021

a

nmesh
Director
DIN: 03040812
Place: Ahmedabad
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a)

b)

Caorporate information

Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited (AICTPL' or Company’) was incorporated on April 22, 2011 with an objective to develop and
operate Container Cargo Terminal at Mundra Port, The Company is a joint venture between Adani Port and Special Economic Zone Limited (APSEZL) and
Mundi Limited wholly owned subsidiary of Global Terminal Limited, Guernsey, in terms of agreement dated October 17, 2011 for development of Container
Terminal infrastructure. In terms of the port development rights granted to Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited (APSEZL). by Gujarat
Maritime Board (GMB) & Government of Gujarat (GoG), under a 30 year Concession Agreement dated February 17, 2001, the Company received sub-
concession rights for development and operation of first phase of Container Terminal Infrastructure of 810 Meter berth from GMB in August, 2012, The
facilities were developed under SEZ Co-Developer arrangement in terms of approval from Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Government of India, April, 8,
2013. The first phase of Container Terminal's commercial operations commenced from July 1, 2013,

The extension Container Terminal (CT-3 Extension) infrastructure of 650 meter berth was developed as per agreement dated December 23, 2015
between the joint venture partners, as stated above. The container terminal facilities were developed by APSEZL and based on arrangement entered by
the Company with APSEZL, it commenced operations at 650 Meter Berth (CT-3 Extension) Container Terminal w.e.f. November 01, 2017. The CT-3
Extension is developed and operated as a SEZ unit in terms of approval dated October 27, 2016 from the Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government
of India,

The sub-concessionaire approval for CT-3 Extension Container Terminal berth of 650 Meter was received from the Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) vide
letter dated March 22, 2018, as an extension to its earlier approval to the Company as sub-concessionaire to own and operate 810 Meter Container
Terminal berth. Sub-concession agreement between the Company, APSEZL and GMB for the entire facilities (i.e. Existing Container Terminal (CT-3) and
Extension to existing container terminal infrastructure (CT-3 Extension) is under execution as on date.

The financial statement were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on April 27, 2021,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of schedule Il to the Companies
Act. 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule II1), as applicable to the Company.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair
value:

- Derivative financial instruments; Including Current Investments,

- Lease Liabilities,

- Defined Benefit Plans - Plan Assets measured at fair value; and

- Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting palicy regarding financial instruments),

In addition, the financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; or

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

Foreign currency translation
The Company's financial statements are presented in INR, which is functional currency of the Company. The Company determines the functional
currency and items included in the financial statements are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction
first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date
of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settiement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss with the exception of the following:
Exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary items related to acquisition of a property. plant and equipment (including funds
used for projects work in progress) recognised in the Indian GAAP financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the
first Ind AS financial reporting period i.e. March 31, 2016 are capitalized / decapitalised to cost of Property, Plant and Equipment and depreciated over
the remaining useful life of the asset.

Non- monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date of initial
transactions.

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecagnition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Company determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.
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Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives and current investments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to anather market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's management determines the policies and procedures for recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments, investment in
mutual funds and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value,

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-
assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing
the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks
of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes,

-Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (refer note 27)

-Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (refer note 27)

-Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (refer note 27)

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Campany expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with customers are provided in
Note 2.4,

Port Operation Services

Revenue from port operation services including cargo handling, sterage and other ancillary port services are recognized in the accounting period in which
the services are transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
thase services,

In cases, where the contracts include multiple contract obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on the
standalone selling prices. Where these prices are not directly observable, they are estimated based on standalone selling prices.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known by
management.

In determining the transaction price for the sale of port operation services, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration and
consideration payable to the customer.

Variable consideration in the form of Volume Discount

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception in some of the contract terms and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the Port Operation services provide customers with
valume rebates. The Company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantitative factors / conditions exceeds a threshold
specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer on one to one basis, To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold. The selected method that
best predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract, The Company then
applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected future rebates.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts with customers are provided in
Note 2.4,

Contract balances

Contract assets:

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from port operation services / other services as receipt of consideration is conditional on
successful completion of services. Upon completion of services and acceptance by the customer, the amounts recognised as contract assets are

.-ré’e sesitied Te.frade receivables,
Contract desaty are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in section (o) Fina struments
—Anitial recog;nnom and subsequent measurement. w
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Trade receivables:

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (p) Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent
measurement.

Contract liabilities:

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Company deliver port
services and transaction price is allocated to unsatisfied performance obligation in respect of Storage and Dispatch services of Customers' Cargo lying at
Port. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., delivery of services te the custaomer).

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Refund liabilities:

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer, The Company's
refund liabilities arise from the customer when the Company ultimately expects it will have to return the amount to the customer. The Company updates
its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Other Operating Income / Other Income

Income from SEIS

Income from Services Exports from India Scheme ("SEIS") incentives under the Government of India’s Foreign Trade Policy 2015-20 on port services
income are classified as "Other Operating Income” and this income is recognised based on the effective incentive rate under the scheme, provided no
significant uncertainty exists for the measurability, realisation and utilisation of the credit under the scheme, The receivables related to SEIS licenses are
classified as “Other Non-Financial Assets”.

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability.
Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Rental Income

Rental Income arising from operating leases on Equipment is accounted for on straight-line basis over on lease term and included in 'other income’ in the
statement of Profit and loss,

Government Grants

Government Grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the period that the related costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amaounts over the expected useful life of the related
asset.

Waterfront royalty on cargo under the concession agreement executed by APSEZ with GMB is paid at concessional rate in terms of rate prescribed by
Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB) and notified in official gazette of Government of Gujarat, wherever applicable,

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value,

Stores and Spares: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis.

Stores and Spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

Net Realizable Value in respect of store and spares is the estimated current procurement price in the ordinary course of the business.

Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Property, Plant and Equipment (including Capital Work-in-Progress) is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of purchase, cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives or over the balance life of the parent asset, as applicable. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as 3 replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred,

Capital Work in Progress comprises of construction and procurement cost of port terminal related infrastructure (project). Cost of Capital work in
progress includes direct cost in the nature of Engineering, Procurement and Construction Charges (EPC Charges) paid / payable to Contractor and Other
direct and indirect cost incurred during the censtruction phase which are attributable to procurement and development of the project.

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of Property, Plant and Equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

All other costs are recognised in the profit or loss as incurred.

The Company adjusts exchange differences arising on translation difference/settlement of long term foreign currency monetary items outstanding in the
Indian GAAP financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial statements i.e, March 31, 2016 and
pertaining to the acquisition of a depreciable asset to the cost of asset and depreciates the same over the remaining life of the asset. The depreciation
on such foreign exchange difference is recognised from first day of the financial year.

Refer to note 2.4 regarding significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions for further information about the recorded decommissioning
provision,

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies
Act 2013, except for the assets mentioned below for which useful life estimated by the management. The Identified component of Property, Plant &
Equipment are depreciated over their useful lives and the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal assets. The management
believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
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The Company has estimated the following useful life to provide depreciation on its certain property, plant and equipments based on assessment made by
expert and management estimate.

Assets Estimated Useful Life

Marine Structure, building and back up yard 50 Years as per sub concession agreement.

An item of property, plant and equipment covered under sub-concession agreement, shall be transferred to and shall vest in Grantor (government
authorities) at the end of concession agreement. In cases, where the Company is expected to receive consideration of residual value of property from
grantor at the end of concession period, the residual value of contracted property is considered as the carrying value at the end of concession period
based on depreciation rates as per management estimate / sub-concession agreement / Schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013 and in other cases it is
NIL,

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles are not capitalised and the related expenditure is
reflected in praofit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amartisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of
carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or losses when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

A summary of the policies of amortisation applied to the Company's intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible assets Method of Amortisation Estimated Useful Life

Software applications on straight line basis 5 Years or useful life whichever is less

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i. Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use), Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of |lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Assets Estimated Useful Life

Right-of-use of Land Over the balance period of sub concession agreement
i.e. up to 28th February, 2031

Right-of-use of Infrastructure Usage Right Qver the balance period of sub concession agreement
i.e. up to 28th February, 2031 from the date of addition
which is 12-18 years.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting
policies in section {I) Impairment of non-financial assets.
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ii. Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or & rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Campany and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate, Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment oceurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iii. Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
income from operating lease is recognised on & straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, The Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of
an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company's
CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years., For longer periods, a
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods
covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life,

Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax,

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Current income
tax (including Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)) is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-Tax
Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted, at the reporting
date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either
in other comprehensive income {OCI) or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred
tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The Company is eligible and claiming tax deductions available under section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 w.e.f FY 2013-14. In view of Company
availing tax deduction under Section 80IA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, deferred tax has been recognized in respect of temporary difference, which
reverse after the tax holiday period in the year in which the temporary difference originate and no deferred tax (assets or liabilities) is recognized in
respect of temporary difference which reverse during tax holiday periad, to the extent such gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax
holiday period. For recognition of deferred tax, the temporary difference which originate first are considered to reverse first,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
future taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax relate to the same tax authority.

The Company recagnizes tax credit in the nature of Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit as an asset only to the extent that there is sufficient taxable
temporary difference / convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit
is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes tax credit as an asset, the said asset is created by way of tax credit to the
statement of profit and loss, The Company reviews the such tax credit asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company
does nat have sufficient taxable temporary difference / convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax includes
MAT tax credit.

Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 2 result of 3 past event, it is probable that an outfiow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

Contingent Liabilities:

Contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Company. Where it is management’s assessment that the outcome is
uncertain or cannot be reliably quantified, the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is remote such
contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the
final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company's financial position.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plan

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable
to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related
service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit
payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.

Defined Benefits Plan

The company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of
providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately
in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the
net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

- Net interest expense or income
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Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short term employee benefits. The company measures
the expected cost of such absence as the additional amount that is expected to pay as a result of the unused estimate that has accumulated at the
reporting date. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months as long term compensated absences which
are provided for based on actuarial valuation as at the end of the period. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method. The
Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer it's settiement for
twelve month after the reporting date.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus in case of financial asset not recorded at fair value through profit and loss, transaction cost
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's
business model for managing them, With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Company has applied the practical expedient, are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115, Refer to the accounting policies in
section 2.2(d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level, Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows, The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(reqular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, l.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

> Financial assets instruments at amortised cost (debt instruments)

> Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) (Derivatives and Equity Instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A 'financial assets' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b)Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisaticn is included in finance income in the profit or loss, The losses arising from impairment are
recoqgnised in the profit or loss. The Company's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade and other receivables, loans, Security and Other deposits
included under Other financial assets.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and investments in equity instruments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through OCI. Dividends on such investments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

Financial Assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed
from the Company's balance sheet) when:

> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

> The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
involverment, In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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Impairment of financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the following notes:

> Disclosures for significant assumptions - see Note 2.4
> Financial Assets at FVTPL - see Note 2.2 (p)
> Trade receivables and contract assets - see Note 4 and 6

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral
held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-menth ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (2 lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

Under the simplified approach the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are overdue. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

ECL impairment loss allowance ( or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income / (expense) in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).
This amount is reflected under the head " Other Expense” in the P&L.

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost:

ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., a5 an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

» Financial liabilities & Equity Instruments
Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Perpetual debt
The Company issued a subordinated perpetual debt, redeemable at the Company's option, with a fixed coupon that can be deferred indefinitely if the
Company does not pay a dividend on its equity shares. The Company classifies these instruments as equity under Ind AS 32,

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives, as appropriate,

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
= Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

« Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term, This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or losgs.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and
only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI, These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, The Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Sk
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Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company's operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity
that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously
recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, such as forward currency
contracts, interest rate swaps, principal only swaps and cross currency swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,
Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivative financial instrument or on settlement of such derivative financial instruments are
tecognised in statement of profit and loss and are classified as Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss except those relating to borrowings, which are separately
classified under Finance Cost.

Segment Reporting

In accordance with the Ind-AS 108 - Operating Segments” , the Company has determined its business segment as developing, operating and maintaining
the port based terminal infrastructure facilities. Since there are no other business segments in which the Company operates, there are no other primary
reportable segments,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company's cash management.

Earnings per share

Basic earning per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of shares autstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

New Standards, Interpretations and amendments adopted by the company

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Company’s
annual financtal statements for the year ended March 31, 2020, except for the adoption of new standards effective or amendments to the existing Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as of April 01, 2020. The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been
issued but is not yet effective. The Company applies, for the first time, following new interpretations and amendments w.e.f.,, April 01, 2020 and do not
have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

a, Amendments to Ind AS 1 & Ind AS 8 : Definition of Material;

b, Amendments to Ind AS 10: Disclosures for non = adjusting events;

c. Amendments to Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform;

d. Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations: Clarification on Definition of Business;

e. Amendments to Ind AS 116: Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

f. Amendments to Ind As 37 : Accounting of restructuring plan
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2.4 Significant judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgement, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Determining the |lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - Company as lessee
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it
is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a
significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Property lease classification - Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio, The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases,

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgement that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with
customers;

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts with customers include obligation of volume rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration,
the Company is required to use either the expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount
of consideration to which customer will be entitled.

The Company determined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to-use in estimating the variable consideration for revenue from
port services with volume rebates. The selected method that better predicts the amount of variable consideration was primarily driven by the number of
volume thresholds contained in the contract with the customer,

Before adjusting any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the amount of variable consideration is
constrained, The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business
forecast and the current econaomic conditions.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Deferred Tax Assets includes minimum alternate tax (MAT) credit of T 13,379.69 lacs recognised in accordance with the provision of the Indian Income
Tax Act, 1961 (the act). The said tax gives rise to future econcmic benefits in the form of adjustment / set off against future income tax lisbility. Based on
the assessment by the management, after considering the tax benefits that are available to the Company under section 80IA of the Act, it is probatle
that the Company will have sufficient taxable profit in future against which, the Company will able to set off the MAT credit. Accordingly, the Company
has recognised deferred tax assets arised from MAT credit entitlement.

Pursuant to the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019 issued by Ministry of Law and Justice (Legislative Department) dated September 20, 2019
effective from April 01, 2019, the Company has option to avail lower tax rates of 22% (without any tax benefits) instead of existing tax rate of 30%. Also,
the tax rate on book profit has reduced to 15% instead of 18.50% as per the existing rate of taxation. Based on assessment, the Company has Chosen to
continue with the existing tax rate of 30% along with reduced tax rate on book profits of 15% until utilisation of MAT credit of 13,379.69 lacs after the
post tax holiday period i.e., from FY 2028-29 onwards.

Further, CT-3 Extension Terminal of 650 meter at Mundra is annexed to the existing terminal of 810 meter. Based on the assessment made by the
management with the help of experts, it is assessed that extension terminal is construed as an additional development to the existing container terminal
facilities, Hence, the Company is eligible to claim tax benefit under section 80IA of the act on income derived from development and operation &
maintenance of Container Terminal infrastructure (existing as well as extension developed terminal).
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Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future, These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation Is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The underlying
bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is
based, on the basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the
specific countries, Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.
Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 32.
Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
Refer Note 27 for further disclosures,

Provision for Decommissioning Liabilities
The management of the Company has estimated that there is no probable decommissioning liability under the condition / terms of the concession
agreement with the GMB.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it
is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
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3. Plant Property and Equipment , Intangible Assets and Capital Work in Progress
Note 3(a) Property, plant and equipment & Intangible Assets

Tin Lacs
Property, Plant and Equipment Intangible assets
Marine
Leasehald Buildings Leaseheld
Rartichlur Land (refer note | P!a._nlt % v c!m“ cu{“”""" Vehicles ('::r::.c::::!m Land F:.;::::a Total Software :;:::::::I::::a Tatal
quip quip
(refer note (i) and ili below) below) Development

Cost
As at April 01, 2019 39.666.22 54,245.00 1B85,524.94 240.37 1319.81 2532 9704029 218.26 838 378,288.59 550.98 85261.36 85,812.34
Reclassified as Right-of -use 39.666.22 - . - - » * . 39.666.22 ] B5261.36 85261.36
assets as per IND AS 116
Additions - 54.24 275.20 121.43 148.63 = * . 6.29 605,79 208,77 4 208.77
Deductions/Adjustment - - - - - - - . S - - * =
Exchange difference = 253.43 73.80 465,48 * - 79271 - . &
As at March 31, 2020 . 54,552.67 185,873.94 361.80 1,468.44 25.32 97,505.77 218.26 14.67 340.020.87 759.75 . 759.75
Additions - 289.97 175.02 91.50 401,73 H = . = 958.22 35,66 o 35.66
Deductions/Adjustment . (44.64) (16.47) (637.0%) . . - - (698.12)| (493.20) E (493.20)
Exchange difference - (70.04) (20.39) - - * {128.63) - - (219.06) = ; &
As at March 31, 2021 - 54,772.60 185.983,93 436.83 1.233.16 25.32 97,377.14 218.26 14.67 340,061.91 30221 = 302.21
D and A |
Asz st Aprll 01,2019 7,476.34 412472 27,824.55 93.44 710.75 9.04 6.404.36 7.39 0.85 46,651.44 508.07 16,278.95 16,787.02
Reclassified as Right-of-use 7.476.34 . - - - - - - - 7.476.34 - 16,278.95 16.278.95
assets as per IND AS 116
Depreciation for the year - 1.768.49 11.119.73 47.84 255.14 327 2576.82 7.27 137 15.783.93 2827 & 28.27
Deductions/Adjustment 2 2 r - £ T 5 A = 5 z 2 :
As at March 31, 2020 - 5,893.21 38.944.28 141.28 969.89 12.31 8,981.18 14,66 2,22 54,959.03 536.34 - 536.34
Depreciation for the year " 1.768.86 11.134.76 80.81 243.01 3.27 2,564.66 127 1.47 15,803.91 63.61 & 63.61
Daductions/Adjustment - = (29.38) {16.47) {815.22) 4 . - - (661.05)| (493.20) . (493.2_9_1_
As at March 31, 2021 . 7.662.07 50,049.68 205.42 597.68 15.58 11,545.84 21.93 3.69 70,101.89 106.75 : 106.75

=t = kit e i e - ke
Nat Block
As at March 31, 2021 = 47.110.53 135,934.25 23141 635.48 9.74 8583130 196.33 10.98 269,960.02 195:.46 2 195.48
As at March 31, 2020 + 48.659.46 146.929.66 220.52 498.55 3ot 88.524.59 203.60 12.45 2B5.061.84 223.41 . 223.41
Notes:

i) Buildings includes backup yard and eivil structures,

) Praperty, Plant & Equipment has been hypothecated as security against borrowing of ¥ 237,138,63 Lacs availed by the Company.(Refer Note 13)

iii) Port terminal immovable assets acquired / developed are pending for registration in the Company’s name.

iv) The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its Property, plant and equipments as recognised in its previous GAAP financial, as deemed cost at the transition date i.e, April 1, 2015 as per optian
permitted under Ind AS 101 for the first time adoption of Ind AS,

Note 3(b) Capital Work in progress

2inLacs

Particulars Amount
As at March 31, 2020 231,29
As at March 31, 2021 40.71

Capital Work in progress amounting of ¥ 40.71 lacs (Previous Year T 231.29 lacs) includes cost of equipments and components which are in process of Installation at part infrastructure facilicy at Mundra,
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Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited
Notes to Financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

4 Investments

Current

Unquoted mutual funds (valued at fair value through profit and loss)

132,944.,03 units (previous year Nil) of ¥ 1,087.92 each in AXIS Overnight Fund
36,911.51 units (previous year Nil) of ¥ 2,817.66 each in UTI Overnight Fund

48,058.17 units (previous year Nil) of ¥1,040.45 each in Invesco India Overnight Fund

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted Mutual Funds
Aggregate net assets value of unquoted Mutual Funds

5 Trade Receivables

Current
Trade Receivables (refer notes below)
- Secured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered good
- Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
- Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for credit losses
Total Trade Receivables

Dues from Related Parties included in above (Refer Note 35)
MSC Mediterranean Shipping Co. S.A.

Adani CMA Mundra Terminal Private Limited

Adani Green Energy Limited

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd,

Adani Wilmar Limited

Notes:-

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¥ In Lacs € in Lacs

1.446.32

1,040.04
500.02

2,986.38 W

2,986.38

2.986.38

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¥ in Lacs € In Lacs
3,383.31 2,334.99
58.95 58.95

3,442.26 2,393.94
(58.95) (58.95)

3,383.31 2,334.99

2,654.38 843.16

0.4 16.08
- 0.41
38.36 1.29
0.09 0.07
2,693.24 861.01

(1) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person: nor any
trade or other receivabtle are due from firms or private companies respectively, in which any director is a partner, a director or 8 member.
(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 to 30 days, including due from related parties.

(iii) Movement in the Expected Credit Loss Allowances

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add:- Allowances recognised during the year
Balance at the end of the year

(iv) For Assets given as securities refer note 13

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Zin Lacs % in Lacs
58.95 13.23
45,72
58.95 58,95




Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited ad=ami
Notes to Financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 L S
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6 Other Financial assets (unsecured and considered Good) As at As a
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Tlin Lacs T In Lacs
Non-current
Security and other deposits 99.32 99.32
Margin money with banks (refer note (i} below) 9,305.85 -
Loan to Employees 25.35 34.07
9,430.52 133.39
Current
Interest accrued on deposits 141.16 49.21
Non Trade receivables 31.87 117.52
Receivables from Derivative Contracts 668.96 1,646.42
Loans and advances to employees 18.11 16.30
860.10 1,829.45
Dues from Related Parties included in above (Refer Note 35)
Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 46.13 88.88
Terminal Investment Limited Sarl 1.44 46.49
Adani (Petronet) Dahej Port Private Limited - 1.7
MPSEZ Utilities Private Limited 83.02 84.82
Adani CMA Mundra Terminal Private Limited 3.80 5
Marine Infrastructure Developer Private Limited 0.39 =
134,78 221.90

Note:-

(i) The Carrying amount of Other Financial Assets as at reporting date approximate to fair value (refer Note 27).

(i)

Margin Money Deposits pertains to Senior Debt Service Reserve Account and Capital Reserve Account, as required by the terms and conditions of

Senior Secured USD Notes issued by the Company.




Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited Sycil=mil
Notes to Financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 il
7 Other Assets (Unsecured, considered good) As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
T In Lacs 2 In Lacs
o] urrent
Capital Advances 3.80 6.28
Deferred Port Services Fees (refer note ii below and note 35) 4,182.88 4,651.93
VAT claim recoverable 0.41 0.41
Advance income tax ( Net of Provision for taxation) 1,998.99 3,367.79
6,186.08 8,026.41
ure
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind 24.37 4337
Prepaid Expenses 150.65 115.90
Deferred Port Services Fees (refer note ii below and note 35) 469,05 469.05
Contract Assets - 154,32
Government Incentive Receivables (refer note iii below) 4,842.40 9,484.67
Goods and Service Tax credit Receivable 14.30 11.99
5,500,77 10,279.30
Notes:
(i) No advance or deposit are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person; nor any trade or
other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively, in which any directer is a partner, a director or a member.
(i) Deferred Port Service Fees represents unamortised balance of advance consideration paid by the Company to Adani Ports and Special
Economic Zone Limited (APSEZL) for providing infrastructure services over remaining period of the Sub-Concession Agreement as per the
Infrastructure Use and Port Service Agreement executed between APSEZL and the Company dated November 01, 2017 and subsequent
amendments thereto. Consideration paid by the Campany is amortised over the period of the Sub-Concession Agreement i.e., till February 16, 2031
and classified as ‘Infrastructure Usage Right Charges’,
(iii) As per Government notification no. 60/2015-2020 dated March 31, 2021 the Company is entitled to Service Exports from India Scheme (SEIS)
benefits on Port Services till year ended March 31, 2020. Accordingly, the SEIS benefits of ¥ 4,842.40 lacs for the Port Services provided during
the financial year ended March 31, 2020 has been accounted by the Company on provisional basis pending notification in respect of the eligible
service categories under the scheme and the rates of rewards on such services by Government Authorities as at reporting date. The Company is
carrying T 4,842.40 lacs receivables in the books based on accrual of income. The Company's management is confident that Company will able to
realise the outstanding receivables once the Government notify the said services and rates.
8 Inventories As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) ¥in Lacs TlIn Lacs
Stores and spares 520.43 470.55
(For Assets given as securities refer note 13) 520,43 470,55
9 Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2 In Lacs % In Lacs
Balances with banks:
Balance in current accounts 2,551.82 2,504.51
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 3,493.00 6,704.00
(For Assets given as securities refer note 13) 6,044.82 9,208.51
10 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
€in Lacs 2 In Lacs
Margin money with financial institutions (refer note (i) below) - 250.00
Deposits with ariginal maturity over 3 months but less than 12 months 683.00 495,00
(For Assets given as securities refer note 13) 683.00 745.00

Notes:

(i) Margin Money Deposits pledged / lien against Foreign Currency Term Loan from Financial Institutions.




Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited adcdami

Notes to Financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 o
11 Share capital As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tln Lacs ?In Lacs
Authorised
1,50,00,00,000 Equity Shares of 2 10 each (1,50.00.00,000 Equity Shares of 150,000.00 150,000.00

12

%10 each as at March 31, 2020)

150,000.00 150,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares
64,44,63,634 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each (64,44,63,634 Equity Shares of T 10 64,446.36 64,446.36
each as at March 31, 2020)

64,446.36 64,446.36
Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020
No Tin Lacs No % In Lacs
At the beginning of the year 64,44,63,634 64,446.36 64,44,63,634 64,446,36
At the end of the year 64,44,63,634 64,446.36 64,44,63,634 64,446.36

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
% in Lacs ¥ in Lacs
Equity shares of T 10 each fully paid
Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited No 322,231,817 322,231,817
% Halding 50.00% 50.00%
T No 322,231,817 322,231,817
Mundi Limited — —_
i i % Holding 50.00% 50.00%
Other Equity As at As at
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
¥ In Lacs T In Lacs
Securities Premium
Opening Balance 4,647.93 4,647.93
Closing Balance 4,647.93 4,647.93

Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of equity shares. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of
Section 52(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Opening Balance (53,521.36) (25,888,45)
Add : Profit / (Loss) for the period 41,139.10 (27,619.78)
Add ; Re-measurement gain / (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 9.25 (13.13)
Closing Balance (12,373.01) (53,521.36)

Total Other Equity (7,725.08) (48,873.43)
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13 Borrowings (Valued at amortised cost) As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ZIn Lacs % in Lacs

Non-Current

a. Term loans
Foreign currency term loans from banks (secured) (refer note a) - 135,172.85
Foreign currency term loans from financial institutions (secured) (refer note a) - 6,086.27
3.00% Senior Secured USD Notes ("Notes") (secured) (refer note b) 217,442.80 -

b. Inter-Corporate Deposits (Shareholders Loans)
Foreign currency loan from JV Partner (secured) (refer note ¢) (refer note 35) 9,847.92 22,699,50
Loan from JV Partner (secured) (refer note d) (refer note 35) 9,847.92 22,699.50
Loan from JV Partner (refer note e) (Unsecured) (refer note 35) 38,556.80 75,931.69

¢. Unsecured-Foreign Currency Letter of Credit from bank under suppliers bills accepted (refer note f) - 58,925.11
Total Non-current borrowing 275,695.44 321,514.92
Less: Current maturities shown under “other current financial liabilities" (refer note 14) (47,254.51) (75.672.77)

228,440,93 245,842.15

Current
Inter Corporate Deposit from JV Partner (Unsecured) (refer note g) - 150.00
Total current boerrowing - 150.00
The above amount includes
Secured borrowings 237,138.64 186,658.12
Unsecured barrowings 38,556.80 135,006.80
Total borrowings 275,695.44 321,664.92

repaid on September 01, 2020,

Notes:

(a) Foreign currency term loan from financial institutions and banks aggregating to ¥ Nil (Previous Year % 1,41,259.12 Lacs) carries interest in the
range of 3.60% to 5.20% per annum, which varies as per market factors. The facility was secured by first ranking pari-passu charge on all movable
and immovable properties of the Company including the Company's interest in the immovable assets, leased assets, along with both present and
future, all the bank accounts of the Company and all future revenues and receivables from the business activities. Apart from this, APSEZL had
given an undertaking to the lenders that on happening of certain events, lenders may require APSEZL to purchase Company's core assets. Further,
the lean amount of ¥ Nil (Previous Year ¥ 6,086.27 Lacs) were also secured by Corporate Guarantee by Adani Port and Special Economic Zone
Limited (APSEZL) to the lenders. The amounts has been repaid during the current year.

(b) Senior Secured USD Notes ("Notes”) aggregating to ¥ 2,17,442.80 lakhs (Previous Year T Nil) carries an interest rate 3.00% per annum. The
Notes are repayable in 19 structured half yearly installments starting from September 2021 to September 2030 and thereafter repayable on 16th
February 2031 (i.e. final maturity date), due-dates as per the Offering Circular of the Notes. The Notes are secured by first ranking pari passu
charge over all present and future immovable property, core assets, tangible and intangible movable assets including book debts, current & non-
current assets, cash flows, receivables, revenues, project accounts, rights, rights, interests, benefits as per specified undertakings and agreements,
ete.

Further, the Company has given a Non-Disposal Undertaking in favour of Security Trustee of the noteholders in respect of all the immovable fixed
assets and core assets until creation and perfection of security on such assets. Also, the shareholders of the Company has given a Non-Disposal
Undertaking in favour of Security Trustee of the noteholders in respect of 100% issued and paid up share capital of the Company till final maturity
of the Notes.

(c) Foreign currency shareholders loan from Joint Venture Partner aggregating to ¥ 9,847.92 Lacs Lacs (Equivalent to USD 13.47 Million) {Previous
Year¥22,699.50 Lacs) carries interest @ 4% p.a.. The loan is repayable in single installment on March 08, 2023. The facility is secured by
subservient charge over the terminal assets. As at reporting date, the Company is in process of creating charge in favour of Mundi Limited.
Shareholders Loans are subordinated to the Senjor Secured Notes.

(d) USD denominated INR shareholders loan from Adani Ports & Special Economic Zone Limited aggregating to ¥ $,847.92 Lacs (Equivalent to
USD 13.47 Million) (Previous Year ¥ 22,699.50 Lacs) carries interest @ 4% p.a.. The loan is repayable in single installment on March 08, 2023, The
facility is secured by subservient charge over the terminal assets. As at reporting date, the Company is in process of creating charge in favour of
APSEZL, Shareholders Loans are subordinated to the Senior Secured Notes.

(e) The Inter Corporate Deposits aggregating to ¥ 38,556.80 Lacs (Previous Year ¥ 76,931.69 Lacs) carries interest of 9.1% per annum. The
amounts are repayable in single installment on January 19, 2022. Shareholders Loans are subordinated to the Senior Secured Notes.

(f) Supplier's Credit facilities of ¥ Nil (Previous Year ¥ 58,925.11 Lacs) carries interest in range of 2.15% to 4.00%. The borrowing under letter of
credit has been repaid on April 13, 2020. The Company availed letter of credit facilities out of the limits of Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone
Limited.

(g) The Inter Corporate Deposits aggregating to ¥ Nil (Previous Year ¥ 150.00 Lacs) carries interest of 11.6% per annum. The amount has been
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Notes to Financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 Lom -
As at As at
14 Lease Liabilities March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¥in Lacs T In Lacs
Non-Curren
Obligations under lease payable against right to use land (refer note (3) below) 6,160.99 6.507.09
6,160,99 6,507.09
Current
Current maturities of obligation under lease payable against right to use land (refer note (3) below) 346.10 301.33
346.10 301.33
Dues to Related Parties included in above (Refer Note 35)
Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 6,507.09 6,808.42

Note:

a) Assets under Right of Use Leases comprises of land for purpose of developing, operating and maintaining container terminal and related
infrastructure facilities in accordance with the terms of Memorandum of Understanding with Adani Ports & Special Economic Zone Limited. The
lease rent is subject to revision after every 3 years by 10% of previous amount. The lease agreement entered is non-cancellable over a lease period
of 30 years and 12 years for CT-3 and CT-3 extension respectively. There is no contingent rent, no sub-leases and no restrictions imposed by the
lease arrangements. Expenditure in the nature of finance cost of ¥ 561.69 lacs {previous year ¥ 583.57 lacs) incurred under such lease have been
expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

Future minimum lease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows :

® in Lacs)
s After One Year % Less: Amounts Present value of
; Within One , Tatal Minimum socy
Particulars but not later  More than five years representing finance minimum lease
Year Lease Payments

than five years charges payments

March 31, 2021

Minimum Lease

Payments 882.93 3,881.31 5,104.75 9,868.99 (3,361.90) 6,507.09
Finance charge

allocated to future

periods 536.83 1.804.94 1,020.12 3,361.90

Present Value of MLP 346.10 2,076.36 4,084.63 6,507.09 - 6,507.09
March 31,2020

Minimum Lease

Payments 863.03 3,737.18 6,131.80 10,732.01 (3,923.59) 6,808.42
Finance charge

allocated to future

periods 561.69 1,952.20 1.409.69 3,923.59

Present Value of MLP 301.33 1,784.98 4,722.10 6,808.42 - 6,808.42




Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited
Notes to Financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

15 Other financial liabilities

on-Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Payable against Derivative Contracts

Capital creditors, retention money and other payable

Current

Current maturities of long term borrowings

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note ¢ below)

Deposits from customers

Capital creditors, retention money and other payable

Payable against Derivative Contracts
Refund Liabilities

Dues to Related Parties included in above (Refer Note 35)
Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd

Mundi Limited

Note:

a) Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiatives

adani
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2 In Lacs % iIn Lacs
2,294.16 3.379.54
- 10,947.43
1.45
2,294.16 14,328.42
47,254,517 75.672.77
2,959.61 1,830.70
152.21 126.85
536.59 195.61
2,497.51 3,547.72
6,301.82 1,675,35
59,702.05 83,049.00
2,673.02 2130.34
2,580.75 1,778.70

Ind AS 7 require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). The Company has provided the information for current period.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

(Tin Lacs)
Particulars April 1,2020  Cash Flows F°:Lgc': f::i’;‘:::ge c“""g:fu:‘ Ealr Accruals March 31, 2021

Long-term Borrowings * 321,514.92 (36,354.58) (8,629.33) (835.58) 275,695.44
Short-term Borrowings 150.00 (150.00) » » n =
Derivatives 12,848,73 (5,705.50) (5,314.88) 1,828.35
Interest Accrued but not due 1.830.70 (14,594.85) - 15,723.76 2,959.61
Lease Liabilities 6,808.42 (301.33) - 6,507.09
Equity Share Capital 69,094.28 - - - 69,094.28
(Including Securities
Premium)
TOTAL 412,247,05 (57.106.26) (8,629,33) (6,150,46) 15,723.76 356,084.77
*Including Current Maturities

® in Lacs)

Particulars April 1, 2019 Cash Flows Fersign Exr..:hange VhapaRsn P Accruals March 31, 2020
Fluctuations Value

Long-term Borrowings * 323,909.70 (25,472.14) 22,808.40 268.96 - 321,514.92
Short-term Borrowings 4,450.00 (4,300,00) - - - 150.00
Derivatives 1,370.74 3,311.98 8,166.01 12,848.73
Interest Accrued but not due 2,233.01 (17,032.69) - - 16,630.38 1,830.70
Lease Liabilities 7.073.66 (265.24) - - 6,808.42
Equity Share Capital 69,094.28 - 69,094.28
(Including Securities
Premium)
TOTAL 408,131.39 (43,758.09) 22,808.40 B8,434.97 16,630.38 412,247.05

* Including Current Maturities

b) Refund Liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured at the
amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the
corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period. Refund liabilities refers to the volume discount which is
payable to the customer after adjusting any outstanding receivable from them.

¢) Current portion of Interest accrued but not due includes accrued interest of T 2,629.31 lacs payable against the portion of subordinated loans
from the shareholders of the Company which was repaid by the Company during year ended March 31, 2021. The interest shall be paid to the
shareholders from the funds available for distribution to shareholders (as per the terms of Senior Secured Notes), subject to regulatory

compliance.
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16 Provisions

Current
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences

17 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax liability (refer note 26)

18 Other Liabilities

Current
Statutory liabilities (net)
Contract Liabilities (Advance from customers) (refer note below)

A
Fopaint

As at

As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T in Lacs Tin Lacs
74.26 73.75
11375 94.63
188.01 168.38
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
%in Lacs % in Lacs
25,486.76 30,140.59
25,486.76 30,140.59
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
% in Lacs T In Lacs
2,501.51 2,120.,79
1.702.95 494.82
4,204.46 2,615.61

Note:- Contract liabilities include advances received from the Customers to deliver Port Operation Services.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities and

how much relates to perfarmance obligations that were satisfied in a prior year.

Revenue recognised out of the contract liability balance at the beginning of the year

19 Trade and Other Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 33)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Dues to Related Parties included in above (Refer Note 35)

(This space has been left intentionally blank)

For the Year

For the Year

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
€ In Lacs € In Lacs
494,82 644.80
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
?In Lacs ?In Lacs
5,867.03 12,538.13
5,867.03 12,538.13
4,764.59 11,672.65
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20 Revenue from Operations

21

211

Revenue from Contract with Customers

- Income from Port Terminal Operations (refer note 1 and 2 below)
Other Operating Income

- Government Incentives on services (refer note 7(iii)

Notes:
1. Recognised revenue based on services transferred at a point in time
2. Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price:

Contract Price

Adjustment for:

Refund liabilities

Change in Contract Assets

Revenue from Contract with Customers

Other Income

Interest Income

On Bank deposits

On Income Tax Refund

QOn Other deposits
Profit on sale of current investments (net)
Equipment hire income (refer note below)
Miscellaneous Sales

Unclaimed liabilities / excess provision written back
Total Other income

=aci=mi

PR ey
[EPTETEE

For the Year

For the Year

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tin Lacs ¥ In Lacs
119.765.92 86,498.26
216,77 6,327.76
119,982.69 92,826.02

For the Year

For the Year

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
€ iIn Lacs Tin Lacs
132,209.23 90,041.52
(12,288.99) (3,697.58)
(154.32) 154.32
119,765.92 86,498.26

For the Year

For the Year

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
€ In Lacs T in Lacs
1,095.21 255.40
204.90 114.83
410 B8.83
4118 406.01
120.03 188.28
7.80 6.63
32.58 *
1,505.77 979.98

Note: Assets given under operating leases- Certain equipment are given on operating lease basis for a duration of one year and is renewable by
mutual agreement. There are no sub-leases and leases are cancellable in nature, There is no contingent rent in the lease agreement.

Operating Expenses

Cargo handling / Other charges to sub-contractors (Including Radio Frequency Identification Devices

Tagging cost and net of reimbursement from sub-contractors)
Equipment hire charges

Customer claims

Waterfront charges

Power and fuel Cost

Spare parts and consumables

Contractual Manpower Charges

For the Year

For the Year

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020

% In Lacs € In Lacs
13,391.50 12,106.16
2,879.85 1,846.62
- 0.15
4,765.64 3,237.94
3,217.66 2125.64
1,034.83 1,122.42
1,722.25 1,720.18
27,011.73 22,1591
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21.2 Revenue Sharing Expenses

For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¥ in Lacs ¥ In Lacs
Revenue Sharing Expenses (refer note below) 22,343.04 16,177.34
22,343,04 16,177.34

Notes:

As per Clause 9.4.1 of the Sub-Concession Agreement (Agreement) between the Company, Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited
(APSEZL) and the Gujarat Maritime Board (GMB), the Company is , in consideration of the rights granted to it by the APSEZL pursuant to the
agreement to develop, operate and maintain Container Terminal (CT-3 and CT-3 Extension) at Mundra Port and right to carry out revenue

generating activities, required to share Income earned from port terminal operations at rate stipulated under the agreement with APSEZL and
disclosed as 'Revenue Sharing Expenses’ in statement of profit and loss.

22 Employee benefit expense

For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Tln Lacs ¥ in Lacs
Salaries and Wages 1,206.89 1,238.96
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (refer note 32) 62.27 60.15
Gratuity Expenses (refer note 32) 20.03 23.68
Staff Welfare Expenses 88.92 78.86
1,388.11 1,401.65
23 Foreign Exchange / Derivatives (Gain) / Loss (net)
For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¢ In Lacs % in Lacs
Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss (net) (refer note below) (8,412.50) 22,038.01
Change in Fair Valuation (Gain) / Loss of Derivatives not designated as hedge (net) (6,323.94) 3,5633.17
(14,736.44) 25,571.18

Note:- Includes foreign exchange (Gain) / Loss (net) on borrowings of T (8,410.25) lacs (previous year ¥ 22,015.69 lacs) on the borrowings.

24 Finance Costs

For the Year For the Year
ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T in Lacs % In Lacs
Interest on
Bonds 1962.68 2
Fixed Loans, Buyer's Credit, Short Term Loan etc. (net) 3,117.00 8,249.86
Inter Corporate Deposit (Note 35) 7,851,37 8,895.94
Finance charges payable on lease obligations (Note 13(a)) 561.69 583.57
Income tax mm -
Capital Creditors (Note 35) - 24.51
Bank and Other Finance Charges 1,326.23 792,59
14,930.08 18,546.47
(Gain) / Loss on Derivatives / Swap Contracts on borrowings / interests not designated as hedges (net) (1133.42) 3,934.76
13,796.66 22,481.23

Note:- Foreign exchange (gain) / loss (net) in note no. 23 includes borrowing cost related to reversal of Foreign exchange differences as per IND
AS 23 Paragraph 6(e) read with paragraph 6A(ii) amounting to T 10,387.03 lacs net off unrealised foreign exchange losses recognised in the
earlier years (Previous year net foreign exchange losses of ¥11,921.04 lacs).
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25 Other Expenses

Rent (note (a) below)

Rates and Taxes

Communication Expenses

Security manpower charges

Travelling and Conveyance

Other Repairs and Maintenance (net of reimbursement)
Insurance (net of reimbursement )

Legal and Professional Expenses

Management support charges

IT Support Services

Payment to Auditors (note (b) below)

Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (note {c) below)
Loss on sale / discard of Property, Plant and Equipments (net)
Allowance for diminution in value of inventory

Allowance for Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired
Miscellaneous Expenses

Notes:

For the Year

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2in Lacs Tin Lacs

259.52 203,15
4.81 4,87
4,49 3.55
165.76 142.03
129.63 141,95
9.12 7.2
545,33 376.08
18.33 72.75
1.178.70 1,071.54
156.45 283,02
49,85 30.84
- 7715

37.07 -
- 2.63
- 45,72
59,22 43,47
2,615.28 2,505.87

a) Assets taken under operating leases - office facilities , amenities and utilities are obtained on operating leases. During the year, the Company has
incurred ¥ 259.52 lacs (Previous year T 203.15 lacs) towards lease rentals which has been charged to statement of profit & loss. There is no sub-
lease and the leases are cancellable in nature. There are no restrictions imposed under the lease arrangements. There is no contingent rent clause

in the lease agreements,

b) Payment to Auditor

As Auditor:
Audit fee (Including reporting to investor entity)
Limited review
In other Capacity
Certification Fees
Other Services*
Reimbursement of expenses®

For the Year

For the Year

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T In Lacs T In Lacs
25.00 25.00
4,50 4,50
0.50 0.50
51.00 -
1.24 0.84
82.24 30.84

* Note- Professional fee of T 32.39 lacs paid for the services rendered in respect of the Bond issued by the Company has been accounted as

transaction cost in accordance with Ind AS 109 for the year ended March 31, 2021.

c) Details of Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibilities

For the Year

For the Year

Particulars g Enyed
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2 in Lacs ? In Lacs

(i) Gross Amount required to be spent during the year 77.15
(i) Amount spent during the year ended % In Lacs
Particulars In Cash YEt. b TOTAL

paid in Cash
March 31,2021
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset -
ii) On Purpose other than (i) above - 2
Total - - .
March 31, 2020
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asset 7 s
ii) On Purpose other than (i) above 77,15 - 7715
Total 77.15 - 7715
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26

Income Tax

=cAS=22ri

(a) 'The major components of income tax expenses for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020

TPeaar e saeven
Ty o 22

Statement of profit and loss

For the Year

For the Year

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge
Adjustment in respect of income tax charge of previous years

Deferred tax :
Charges relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (post tax holiday period)
Tax (Credit) under Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT')

Income tax expenses reported in statement of profit and loss

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
¥ln Lacs € In Lacs
7,750.41 .
- 88.46
3,091.61 6,255.61
(7,750.41) -
3,091.61 6,344.07

(b) Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OC| during the year

For the Year

For the Year

ended ended
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
¥ln Lacs T In Lacs
Net (gain) / loss on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (4.97) 7.06
Income tax credit / (charged) to OCI (4.97) 7.06
(c) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rate for March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
% 2 In Lacs % € In Lacs
Profit Before tax 44.230.71 (21,275.71)
Tax using the Company's domestic rate 34,.94% 15,455.98 34,94% (7,434.58)
Tax Effect of:
Non Deductible Expenses 987.34 964.53
Tax expenses on unabsorbed depreciation of current (8,464.87) 12,796.12
year (refer note g)
Impact of Tax credit during Tax Holiday Period (4,884.51) (71.19)
Tax adjustment in respect of previous period . 88.46
Others (3.38) 0.73
Effective tax rate 6.99% 3,090.56 -29.82% 6,344.07
Tax expenses as per Books 3,090.56 6,344.07

Note:- The tax rate used for FY2020-21 and FY 2019-20 reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 34.944%, payable by corporate entities in
India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law. Also refer note 2.4 with regards to Significant estimates and judgement used by the

management in estimating Tax Expenses

(d) Deferred tax relates to following
Balance Sheet as at

Statement of Profit and Loss

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
€ In Lacs € in Lacs €In Lacs ¥ In Lacs
Accelerated depreciation for tax 38.880.80 35789.19 3,091.61 6.255.61
purpose
Tax (Credit) Entitlement under MAT (13,381.83) (5.631.42) (7,750.47) -
(Assets) on remeasurement (loss) on
defined benefit plans (12.21) (17.18) 4.97 (7.06)
Deferred tax liabilities 25,486.76 30,140.59 (4,653.83) 6,248.55
As at As at
(e) Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
%in Lacs ?In Lacs
Tax expense during the period recognised in profit and loss 3,091.61 6.255.61
Tax (credit) during the period recognised in OCI 4.97 (7.06)
Total Chargeto P& L 3,096.58 6,248,55
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(f) The Company is eligible to avail benefits under section BOIA of the Income Tax Act, 1961 on the taxable income w.e.f. financial year 2013-14.
Subject to Company is liable to pay Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) on book profit, in the year company having profit, in terms of provisions for tax
under Section 115JB, During the current year, the Company has recognised deferred tax charge of T 3,091.61 lacs {Previous Year T 6,248.55 lacs)
and balance of Deferred Tax Liabilities as at March 31, 2021 is ¥ 38,868.59 lacs (March 31, 2020 ¥ 35,772.01 lacs) in respect of timing difference
which will reverse after the tax holiday period. As at March 31, 2021 unutilised balance of MAT Credit Entitlement of ¥ 13,381.83 lacs (March 31,
2020 ¥ 5,631.42 lacs). The management believes, in view of strategic volumes of cargo available with the Company and higher depreciation
charge for accounting purpose than the depreciation for income tax purpose in the future period, it is possible that the MAT credit will be utilised
post tax holiday period w.e.f financial year 2028-29. As per regulation under section 115JAA of Income Tax Act, 1961, MAT credit can be utilised
up to 15 assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year in which tax credit becomes allowable.

(g) The Company has following unutilised MAT credit under the Income Tax Act, 1967 for which deferred tax assets has been recognised in the
balance sheet:

Amount

Financial Year @® in Lacs) Expiry Date
2015-16 607.97 2030-2031
2016-17 2.940.48 2031-2032
2017-18 2,082,97 2032-2033
2020-21 7,750.41 2035-2036
TOTAL 13,381.83

(h) The Company has carried forward unabsorbed depreciation aggregating to ¥ 93,610.15 lacs (Previous year ¥ 1,31,776.77 lacs) under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 for which there is no expiry date of its tax credit utilisation by the respective entities.

Deferred Tax Assets has not been recognised in respect of these unabsorbed depreciation as it is assessed by the management that unabsorbed
losses expected to be utilised during tax holiday period i.e., up to financial year 2027-28. If the Company will not able to reverse / utilised all
unabsorbed depreciation within tax holiday period, then the Company shall be required to recognise deferred tax assets on aforesaid unabsorbed
depreciation,

(This space has been left intentionally blank)
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27 Financial Instruments, Financial Risk and Capital Management :

27.1 Category-wise Classification of Financial Instruments:

a) The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2021 is as follows :

¥ in Lacs
Particulars Fa;r\;:::;t:g::gh Amortised Cost Carrying value
Financial Asset
Investments in unquoted mutual funds (Note 4) 2,986.38 - 2,986.38
Trade receivables (Note 5) = 3,383.31 3,383.31
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Note 9) - 6,044.82 6,044.82
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 683.00 683.00
Derivatives Instruments not designated as hedge (Note 6) 668.96 - 668.96
Others financial assets (Note 6) - 9,621.66 9,621.66
Total 3,655.34 19,732.79 23,388.13
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings {including Current Maturities) (Note 12 & 15) 275,695.44 275,695.44
Trade payables {Note 19) r 5,867.03 5,867.03
Derivatives Instruments not designated as hedge (Note 15) 2,497.31 - 2,497,31
Lease Liabilities( Note 14) - 6,507.09 6.507.09
Other financial liabilities (Note 15) - 12,244.39 12,244.39
Total 2,497.31 300,313.95 302,811.26
b) The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2020 is as follows :

€In Lacs

Particulars

Fair Value through
Profit & Loss

Amortised Cost

Carrying value

Financial Asset

Trade receivables (Note 5) 2,334.99 2,334.99
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 9) 9,208.51 9,208.51
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) - 745.00 745.00
Derivatives Instruments not designated as hedge (Note 6) 1.646.42 - 1,646.42
Others financial assets (Note &) - 316.42 316.42
Total 1,646.42 12,604,92 14,251.34
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings (including Current Maturities) (Note 12 & 15) 321,664.92 321,664.92
Trade payables (Note 19) . 12,538.13 12,538.13
Derivatives Instruments not designated as hedge (Note 15) 14,495,15 - 14,495,15
Lease Liabilities {(Note 14) - 6,808.42 6,808.42
Other financial liabilities (Note 15) - 7.209.50 7,209.50
Total 14,495,15 348,220,997 362,716.12

The management assessed that Financial Assets and Liabilities, measured at amortised cost, is approximates their carrying

the short-term maturities of these instruments.

27.2 Fair Value Measurements:

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's financial assets and liabilities:

amount largely due to

Inputs (Level 2)

% In Lacs
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Particulars Significant Significant
observable observable

Inputs (Level 2)

Financial Assets

Investments in unquoted Mutual Funds measured at FVTPL (note 4) 2,986.38 -
Derivative instrument not designated as hedge (note 6) 668.96 1,646.42
Total 3,655.34 1,646.42
Financial Liabilities

Derivative instruments not designated as hedge (note 15) 2,497.31 14,495,15
Total 2,497.31 14,495.15

Investments in Unquoted Mutual Funds are valued based on declared NAV.

Derivative instruments are valued based on observable inputs i.e yield curves, FX rates and volatilities etc.

T,
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The financial instruments are categorised into three levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Valuation Methodology

All financial instruments are initially recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value as described below:

a) The fair value of investment in quoted Equity Shares, and Mutual Funds is measured at quoted price or NAV.

b) The fair value of Interest Rate Swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves.

¢) The fair value of Forward Foreign Exchange contracts and Currency Swaps is determined using forward exchange rates and yield curves at the

balance sheet date.
d) The fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.
e) All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are transiated using exchange rate at reporting date.

27.3 Financial Risk objective and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables (including lease
payable & capital creditors). The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's project cost / operations, The Company's
principal financial assets, other than derivatives, include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations. The Company alse enters into derivative transactions in the nature of Foreign Currency Forward Contracts, interest rate

swaps, cross currency swaps INR-Foreign Currency Swap Contract.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulting from exchange rate fluctuation (currency risk)referred as
Market Risk, Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risk, It manages its exposure to
these risks through derivative financial instruments by hedging transactions after evaluation of risks, It uses derivative instruments such as Cross
Currency Swaps, Interest rate swaps and foreign currency forward contract to manage these risks. These derivative instruments reduce the

impact of both favourable and unfavourable fluctuations,

The Company's risk management activities are subject to the management, direction and control of Central Treasury Team of APSEZL under the
framework of Risk Management Policy for Currency and Interest rate risk as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. APSEZL's central
treasury team ensures appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives. It is the Company's policy that

no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

The decision of whether and when to execute derivative financial instruments along with its tenure ¢an vary from period to period depending on
market conditions and the relative costs of the instruments. The tenure is linked to the timing of the underlying exposure, with the connection
between the two being regularly monitored. The Company is exposed to losses in the event of non-performance by the counterparties to the
derivative contracts. All derivative contracts are executed with counterparties that, in our judgment, are creditworthy. The outstanding derivatives

are reviewed periodically to ensure that there is no inappropriate concentration of outstanding to any particular counterparty.

Further, all currency and interest risk as identified above is measured on a daily basis by monitoring the mark to market (MTM) of open and hedged
position. The MTM is derived basis underlying market curves on closing basis of relevant instrument quoted on Bloomberg/Reuters. For guarter
and year ends, the MTM for each derivative instrument outstanding is obtained from respective banks. All gain / loss arising from MTM for open

derivative contracts and gain / loss on settlement / cancellation / roll over of derivative contracts is recorded in statement of profit and loss.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises of interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include Mutual Fund Investments, borrowings

and derivative financial instruments.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt and
derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant as at March 31, 2021, The analyses exclude the

impact of movements in market variables,
The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:

- The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial

assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.
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Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates due to financing (including through capital creditors), investing and cash
management activities, The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates against some of the borrowings. The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio
of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings
affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as
follows:

During the current year, the Company has refinanced its floating rate of borrowings with fixed interest rate borrowings and accordingly the
Company is not exposed to changes in the market interest rates. If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher / lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Company's profit and equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021 would decrease / increase by ¥ Nil (previous year T
779.37 Lacs). This is mainly attributable to interest rates on variable rate long term borrowings.

The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the year.

Foreign currency risk

Exchange rate movements, particularly the United States Dollar (USD) and EURO (EUR) against Indian Rupee (INR), have an impact on the
Company's operating results and financial position. The Company manages its foreign currency risk by entering into currency swap for converting
INR loan into other foreign currency for taking advantage of lower cost of borrowing in stable currency environment, The Company also enters
into various foreign exchange contracts to mitigate the risk arising out of foreign exchange rate movement on foreign currency borrowings and
against trade payables. Further, to hedge foreign currency future revenue transactions in respect of which firm commitment are made or which
are highly probable forecast transactions (for instance, foreign exchange denominated income) the Company has entered into foreign currency
forward contracts as per the policy of the Company.

The Company is mainly exposed to changes in USD. The below table demaonstrates the sensitivity to a 1% increase or decrease in the respective
foreign currency rates against INR, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity analysis is prepared on the net unhedged exposure of the
Company as at the reporting date. 1% represents management's assessment of reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rate.

Impact on profit after tax Impact on Pre-tax Equity
Sr. No. Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended  For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1 USD Sensitivity
INR / USD - Increase by 1% 2,447.82 1.996.58 2,447.82 1,996.58
INR / USD - Decrease by 1% 2,447.82 1.996.58 2.447.82 1.996.58

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and investment, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive evaluation and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minor
receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical
data.

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the APSEZ's treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty, Counterparty credit limits are
reviewed by the Company’s Board of Directors on an annual basis, and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company's
Board of Director. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential
failure to make payments.

Concentrations of Credit Risk form part of Credit Risk

Considering that the Company operates the port services at Mundra, the Company is significantly dependent on cargo from a large customer like
Mediterranean Shipping Company (MSC Group). Out of tatal revenue, revenue of T 85,683.27 lacs during the year ended March 31, 2021 (previous
year ¥ 61,088.16 lacs) is from such port user which constitute 71% (previous year 66%). Accounts receivable from such customer approximate T
2,654.38 lacs as at March 31, 2021 and T 843.16 lacs as at March 31, 2020. A loss of this customer could adversely affect the operating result or
cash flow of the Company.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to
its fair value,

The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short term, medium term and long term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets
and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has
adequate credit facilities agreed with banks and APSEZ to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating and projects
commitments in a timely and cost-effective manner.

In respect of loan repayable within next 1-2 years, the management of the Company has planned funding by way of refinancing arrangement or
through cash flow generation from operation.

The table below analysis derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities
of the financial liabilities including interest that will be paid on those liabilities upto the maturity of the instruments as updated during the year,
ignoring the refinancing options available with the Company. The amounts included below for variable interest rate instruments for non derivative
liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the

reporting period.

T in Lacs

Contractual maturities of financial

Total Carrying

Total Contractual

On demand or within

Over 1 year Within 5

Over 5 years

liabilities as at March 31, 2021 Value Cashflow 1 year years

Borrowings {note 12 & 14) 275,695.44 275,695.44 47,254,51 69,707.67 158,733.26

Trade Payables (note 18) 5,867.03 5,867.03 5,867.03 - -

Capital Creditors (note 14) 536.59 536.59 536,59 - .

Lease Liabilities (note 13) 6,507.09 6,507.09 346.10 2,076.36 4,084.63

Interest and Other Financial Liabilities 11,707.80 61,734.07 19,550.63 25,911.90 16,271.54

(note 14)

Derivative Instruments (note 14) 2,497.31 2,497.31 2,497.31 7 =
Total 302,811.26 352,837.53 76,052.17 97,695.93 179,089.43

%inLacs

Contractual maturities of financial

Total Carrying

Total Contractual

On demand or within

Over 1 year Within 5

Over 5 years

liabilities as at March 31, 2020 Value Cashflow 1 year years

Borrowings (note 12 & 14) 321,664.92 321,664.92 75.822.77 24584214 .

Trade Payables (note 18) 12,538.13 12,538.13 12,538.13 : :

Capital Creditors (note 14) 197.06 197.06 195.61 1.45 J

Lease Liabilities (note 13) 6.808.42 6,808.42 301.33 1.784.98 47221

Interest and Other Financial Liabilities 7.012.44 41,041.78 17,153.66 23,888.12 -

(note 14)

Derivative Instruments (note 14) 14,495,15 14,495.15 3,547.72 10,947.43 -
Total 362,716.12 396,745.46 109,559.22 282,464.12 4.722.11

27.4 Capital management

For the purposes of the company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the
company's capital management is to maximize shareholder value. The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light
of changes in economic enviranment and the requirements of the financial covenants.

The company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (total debt less cash and cash equivalents) divided by total capital plus net

debt.

ginLacs
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Total Borrowings (note 12 and 14) 275,695,44 321,664.92
Add: Capital Creditors (note 14) 536.59 197.06
Less: Cash and bank balance {note 9) 6,044.82 9,208.51
Net Debt (A) 270,187.21 312,653.47
Total Equity (B) 56,721.28 15,572.93
Total Equity and Net Debt (C = A + B) 326,908.49 328,226.40
Gearing ratio B2.65% 95.26%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Non Adherence of Financial
Covenants can lead to Event of Default whereby Lender may right to recall the call after expiry cure period permitted in respective period. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.

As per the terms, the shareholders’ loan shall be repayable after the repayment of the loan from banks and financial institution. Further, on
maturity of loan the shareholders' may, with prior approval of Company, can convert the outstanding lean into equity shares based on fair market
value of the Company as per applicable laws in India.

No chargés were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.
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28 Earnings per share

Profit / (Loss) attributable to equity shareholders of the company
Weighted average number of equity shares
Basic and Diluted earning per share (in I)

29 Capital commitments and Other commitments

a) Capital commitments

=ciari

FrearEm ameaed
[

March 31, 2021
®in Lacs

March 31, 2020
TIn Lacs

41,139.10
6,444.64
6,38

(27.619,78)
6,444.64
(4.29)

¥ In Lacs

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for

739.63

1,103.61

30

Contingent liabilities not provided for

Tin Lacs

Sr.No

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

a

The Company's income tax assessment is completed for assessment year 2014-15, except
disputed income tax on late deposit of TDS, in respect of which the Income Tax Department
is in appeal before the Gujarat High Court since November 2017. The management is
reasonably confident that its position is likely to be based on favourable order received from
Income Tax (Appeals) and Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (ITAT) in earlier years,

7027

75.27

The Company has received assessment order for Assessment Year 2013-14 from Income Tax
Department for demand of disputed tax of ¥ 668.89 lacs and interest thereon of T 304.77
lacs on December 30, 2016. The demand pertains to multiple issues like capital gains tax on
high sea sales of plant and equipment, derivative swap losses and interest income etc..
Further to this, refund adjustment intimation has been received where further interest of T
202.02 has been adjusted. In the matter, the Company is in appeal before the Commissioner
of Income Tax (Appeals), Ahmedabad, since January, 2017.

In current year, the management has declared tax arrears of AY 2013-14 under section 3 of
the Direct Tax Vivad Se Vishwas Act, 2020 (the VSV Act, 2020), with full waiver of interest.
Accordingly, the Company has provided for disputed tax amount of T 668.89 lacs as at March
31, 2021 (March 31, 2020 T 668.89 lacs) and disclose demand for Interest amounting of ¥
505.79 lacs as contingent liabilities.

The total tax demand including interest of ¥ 1,175.69 lacs has already been adjusted by the
Income tax department against the refund of AY 2015-16, AY 2016-17 and AY 2019-20. The
Company is reasonably confident for refund from Tax Authorities under the VSV Act, 2020

and doesn't expect any exposure over and above the amount provided in the financials as at|"

March 31, 2021,

505.79

505.79

The Company's income tax assessment is completed for assessment year 2017-18 and
Assessing Officer has disallowed expenses related to employer's contribution te PF and has
also given less TDS credit, in respect of which the Company is in appeal before Cemmissioner
of Income Tax (Appeals). The Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) has allowed TDS credit
as per grounds of appeal and disallowed employer's contribution to PF. The Company is in
appeal before ITAT and the management is reasonably confident that no liability will devolve
on the Company.

4.36

In February 2020, the company has received intimation order u/s 143(1) for AY 2018-19 with
increase in Book Profit by ¥ 2,116.50 lacs and related tax Liability by ¥ 553.00 lacs. The
Company has filed online rectification application u/s 154 of the Income tax Act, 1961. On
March 03, 2020 online rectification application filed u/s 154 of the Act was rejected and the
Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against the Order
u/s 154 of the Act.

The management is reasonably confident that its position shall be upheld in the appellate
process.

553.00

553.00
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31 Segment information

Bl

The Company is primarily engaged in one business segment, namely developing, operating and maintaining the port services at Mundra, as
determined by chief operational decision maker, in accordance with Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segment”,

Considering the inter relationship of various activities of the business, the chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its
business segment on overall basis. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in
the financial statements.

Further, all the revenue from Customers and assets of the Company derived from the services rendered in India and situated in India respectively.

Revenue from Port terminal operations rendered to MSC Group as per the terminal service agreement, entered between the Company and the
Customers, accounts for more than 10% of the total revenue (Also refer note 27.3).

Disclosures as required by Ind AS - 19 Employee Benefits

The company has recognised, in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the current year, an amount of ¥ 62.27 lacs (previous year T 60.15 lacs) as
expenses under the following defined contribution plan.

% in Lacs
Contribution to 2020-21 2019-20
Provident Fund 62.27 60.15
[Total 62.27 60,15

b) The company has a defined gratuity plan (funded) and is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, every employee who has

C

=

completed at least five years of service is entitled to gratuity benefits on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of
service. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Company of India (LIC) in form of a qualifying insurance policy for future payment of gratuity to
the employees.

Each year, the management reviews the level of funding in the gratuity fund. Such review includes the assets -liability matching strategy. The
management decides its contribution based on the results of this review. The management aims to keep annual contributions relatively stable at a
level such that no plan deficits ( based on valuation performed) will arise.

The following tables summarise the component of the net benefits expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss account and the
funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the respective plan.

Gratuity
)Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: 2 In Lacs
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 169.46 113.77
Current service cost 24.37 21.09
Interest cost 12.07 9.36
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
- change in demographic assumptions (5.34) 1.89
- change in financial assumptions = 13.05
- experience variance (11.72) 5.25
Benefits paid (7.45) (4.07)
Liability Transfer In 19,32 19.20
Liability Transfer Out (8.50) (10.08)
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 192,21 169.46
ii)Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows: 2in Lacs
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 95,71 88.94
Investment income 6.41 6.77
Contributions by employer 18.67 -
Benefits paid - =
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense (2.84) .
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 117.95 95,71
iii) Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet €in Lacs
Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 192.21 169.46
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 117.95 95,71
Amount recognised in the balance sheet (74.26) (73.75)
Net (liability)/asset - Current (refer note 15) (74.26) (73.75)
iv) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year Zin Lacs
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Current service cost 24,37 21,09
Interest cost on benefit obligation 5.66 2.59
_ITotalExpenses included in employee benefits expense (refer note 22) 30.03 23.68

/
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Notes to Financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

v) Recognised in the other comprehensive income for the year

¥ in Lacs

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from

- change in demographic assumptions (5.34) 1.89
- change in financial assumptions - 13.05
- experience variance (11.72) 5,25
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense 2.84 v
Recognised in comprehensive income (14.22) 20.19

vi) The principle assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations are as follows:

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Discount rate

6.70%

6.70%

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum)

8.00%

8.00%

Mortality India Assured India Assured
Live Mortality Live Mortality

(2012-14) (2012-14)

Attrition rate 9,50% 6.71%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which

the obligation is to be settled.

vii) Sensitivity Analysis Methaod

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

viii) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below
Increase/(decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year

Particulars

March 31, 2021 |

March 31, 2020

Assumptions

Discount rate

Sensitivity level 1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligations fhise bl o] Sipacs Slnkac
i g (14.89) 17.02 (15.63) 18.20

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Assumptions

Salary Growth rate

Sensitivity level

1% Increase

1% Decrease

1% Increase

1% Decrease

Zin Lacs

?in Lacs

2in Lacs

2in Lacs

Impact on defined benefit obligations

16.63

(14.86)

17.79

(15.59)

Particulars

March 31, 2021 |

March 31, 2020

Assumptions

Attrition rate

Sensitivity level

50% Increase

50% Decrease

50% Increase

50% Decrease

Tin Lacs

Tin Lacs

2in Lacs

2in Lacs

Impact on defined benefit obligations

(6.63)

10.05

(5.29)

757

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Assumptions

Mortality rate

Sensitivity level

10% Increase

10% Decrease

10% Increase

10% Decrease

Tin Lacs

Tin Lacs

Zin Lacs

Zin Lacs

Impact on defined benefit obligations

(0.03)

0,03

(0.04)

0.04

ix) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31, 2020

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows) 8 Years 10 Years

x) The expected cash flows of defined benefit obligation over the future periods (valued on undiscounted bases) Tin Lacs
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1year 16.46 13.16
2to 5 year 71.68 48.04
6 to 10 year 89.98 70.95
More than 10 years 194.68 244,44
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xi)The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

adanmi
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Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020

Investments with insurer

100%

100%

* As the gratuity fund is managed by life insurance company, details of fund invested by insurer are not available with company.

xii) Asset Liability Matching Strategies
The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is basically a year-on year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on
yearly basis and is guaranteed for a period of one year, The insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity payable
to the employees left during the year other than the payments made by the company directly (subject to sufficiency of funds under the policy).
The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash accumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duration
of liabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate (in particular, the significant fall in interest rates, which should resultin a
increase in liability without corresponding increase in the asset).
The company expects to contribute T 97.76 lacs to gratuity fund in the next year. (Previous year ¥ 97,97 lacs)

d) The code of Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during the employment and post-employment received Presidential
assent in September 2020 and its effective date Is yet to be notified. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the
Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the
Ministry. The Company will assess the financial impact once the subject rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial
statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective.

33 Information required to be furnished as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and
Schedule (Il of the Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2021, This information has been determined to the extent such parties have
been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

¥ in Lacs

Sr No

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

1

Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of
each accounting year.

Principal

Interest

Nil

Nil
Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and
Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006.

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year;
and

Nil

Nil

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
2006.

Nil

Nil
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34 Derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure
The Company takes various types of derivative instruments. The category-wise outstanding position of derivative instruments is as under:

Particulars of derivatives
Nature March 31, 2021 March 31,2020 Purpose
T In Lacs 2 In Lacs

Hedging of expected future billing based

: y on Port tariff denominated in foreign
Forward Contract (Sell) (equivalent to (equivalent to currency USD 37 Million (previous year

¥27,050.70 lacs) ¥ 86,258.10 lacs) USD 114 Million)

USD 65.00 million |Hedaing of foreign currency borrowing
Forward Contract (Buy) Nil (equivalent to principal & interest liability of Nil (previous
£49,182.25 lacs) |year USD 65.00 million)

Mitigate higher interest rate of INR loan of
T 37,223.89 lacs $75828.891acs [T 37,223.89 lacs (previous year <
Principal only swap (INR-foreign currency) (equivalent to (equivalent to 75,828.89 lacs) against INR currency loan
USD 54,67 million) | USD 111.38 million) |with possible forex risk of principle
currency losses.

Hedging of interest rate on foreign
currency borrowing liability of Nil (previous
year USD 89.00 million)

USD 37.00 million | USD 114.00 million

Interest on Principal
Interest rate swap (Variable te Fixed Rate) Nil amount of USD
89.00 million

The details of foreign currency exposures those are not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as under:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Nature Amount Foreign Currency Amount Foreign Currency
2 In Lacs In Milllon % In Lacs In Milllon
Foreign currency loan (Including loan from JV Partners) 239,025.83 | USD 326.94 142,347.05 | USD 188.13
Bills under letter of credit = - 58,925.11 | USD 77.88
Interest accrued but not due 4,575.53 | USD 6.81 4,237.81 | USD 5.60
Capital Creditors / Qther Payables 435,57 | USD 0.60 1.28 | USD 0.0017
1.96 | EURO 0.0023 - -

Trade payables 345.05 [ USD 0.47 260.49 | USD 0.34

& s 2.14 | EURQ 0.026
Note:- * Figures being nullified on conversion to T in lacs
Closing rates as at March 31, 2021: Closing rates as at March 31, 2020:
INR/USD =731 INR/USD =75.665

INR/EURO =85.75 INR/EURO =82.77
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Note 35- Related Parties transactions

r the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

Name of Company

Joint Venturer

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, (APSEZL)
Mundi Limited

[Parent Company of Joint Venturer,
Mundi Ltd.

Terminal Investment Limited Sarl

Ultimate Parent Company of Joint
Venturer, Mundi Ltd.

MSC Mediterranean Shipping Co. S.A.

Entities over which wventurer's or
their substantial controlling
shareholders are able to exercise
Significant Influence

Adani CMA Mundra Terminal Private Limited
MPSEZ Utilities Private Limited

Adani Kandla Bulk Terminal Private Limited
Adani Hazira Port Private Limited

Adani (Petronet) Dahej Port Private Limited
Adani Foundation

Adani Power Mundra Limited

Adani Wilmar Limited

Mundra Solar Technopark Private Limited

Adani Institute for Education & Research

Adani Green Energy Limited

Adani Renewable Energy (RJ) Limited

Marine Infrastructure Developer Private Limited
Belvedere Golf And Country Club Private Limited
Mundra LPG Terminal Private Limited

Adani Enterprise Limited

Adani Logistics Limited

The Dhamra Port Company Limited

Key Management Personnel

Capt. Sandeep Mehta - Director

Mr. Unmesh Abhyankar - Director

Mr, Craig Kelly - Director

M., Chris Schaffers - Director

Mr. Mayur Shah - Company Secretary

Terms and conditions of transactions

with related parties

=i =i

Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end are unsecured. For the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the

related party and the market in which
Notes:

the related party operates.

(i) The names of the related parties and nature of the relationships where control exists are disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been
transactions between the related parties. For others, the names and the nature of relationships is disclosed only when the transactions are entered into by
the Company with the related parties during the existence of the related party relationship.

(i) Aggregate of transactions for the y

ear ended with these parties have been given below.

L

¥in Lacs
& For the year For the year
Transactions _ Name of Related Party iy 31'5'2021 o 31’3"2020
Equipment Hire Income Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 120.03 188.28
Purchase of Property, Plant & Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 158.38 87.20
Equipments and Intangible Assets Adani Hazira Port Private Limited 0.05 5
(Including finance lease obligation Mundra Solar Technopark Private Limited - 1.43
payable)
Purchase of Materials, Stores and Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 1,086.37 1,540.91
Spares, Fuel and Electricity Adani Hazira Port Private Limited 0.75 -
Adani CMA Mundra Terminal Private Limited 1.02 6.70
Mundra LPG Terminal Private Limited 6.59 3
Adani Kandla Bulk Terminal Private Limited 0.04 -
MPSEZ Utilities Private Limited B829.17 625.43
Sale of Materials (Stores and Spares [Adani CMA Mundra Terminal Private Limited 2.45 33
and SEIS License) Adani Hazira Port Private Limited 1.04
Adani Wilmar Limited 4,8559.05 2,985.45
Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 4.31 323
Port Services Availed (Including Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 1.727.34 3,534.08
reimbursement of Expenses)
Reimbursement of Guest House Adani Power Mundra Limited 1 0.01
Expenses Belvedere Golf And Country Club Private Limited 0.10 -
Management support charges Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 1,178.70 1,071.54
Revenue Share Expenses (refer note |Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 22.343.04 16.177.34
21.2)
Donation Adani Foundation - 775
Training Expenses Adani Institute for Education & Research 2.10 4.20
Water front Royalty Reimbursement |Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 4,765,64 3,237.94
Expenses Recovered Terminal Investment Limited Sarl 46.82 49.02
Reimbursement of Expenses Terminal Investment Limited Sarl 270 7
Mundi Limited 7.55 =
Container Handling Charges Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 12,622.37 10,398.85
Port Terminal Services (income) MSC Mediterranean Shipping Co. S.A. gz2112.4 61,088.16
Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 135.38 41.85
Adani Wilmar Limited 1.33 30
Adani Green Energy Limited 10.16 3.67
Adani Renewable Energy (RJ) Limited 0.67
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. Tin Lacs
or the year For the year
Transactions Name of Related Party March 31"'2021 Mareh 31'y2020
Employee Liabilities transfer in Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 26.45 24.50
Marine Infrastructure Developer Private Limited 0.39 -
Adani CMA Mundra Terminal Private Limited 3.80 -
Adani (Petronet) Dahej Port Private Limited g 1.71
Employee Liabilities transfer out Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd, 0.21 4.50
Adani Hazira Port Private Limited 0.71 1.1
Adani Logistics Limited 354
The Dhamra Port Company Limited 6.50
Adani Kandla Bulk Terminal Private Limited 2.38 .
MPSEZ Utilities Private Limited 3 0.47
Marine Infrastructure Developer Private Limited - 9.81
Long term borrowing (ICD) Repaid Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 4951853
Mundi Limited 12,115.98
Short term borrowing (ICD) Repaid  |Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 150.00 4,300.00
Corporate Guarantee Taken Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. - USD 100 million
Finance charges on lease obligations [Adani Ports and Special Economic Zane Ltd. 561.69 583.57
Interest Income on Security Deposits [MPSEZ Utilities Private Limited 4,10 8.84
Interest on Capital Creditors Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 24.51
Interest on borrowings Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd. 7,003.01 7.970.26
Mundi Limited 848.36 925.68
2in Lacs
Closing Balance As at As at
! Al AR Py March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Trade Receivable MSC Mediterranean Shipping Co. S.A. 2.654.38 843.16
Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 38.36 1.29
Adani Wilmar Limited 0.09 0.07
Adani Green Energy Limited # 0.41
Adani CMA Mundra Terminal Private Limited 0.41 16.08
Other Receivable Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 26.24 68.99
Adani (Petronet) Dahej Port Private Limited - 171
Adani CMA Mundra Terminal Private Limited 3.80
Marine Infrastructure Developer Private Limited 0.39 :
MPSEZ Utilities Private Limited - 0.33
Terminal Investment Limited Sarl 1.44 46.49
Other Assets (including Deferred Port|Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 4,651,93 5,120.97
Service Fees)
Accrued Revenue Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd - 41,85
Security Deposit Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 19.89 19.89
MPSEZ Utllities Private Limited 79.33 79:33
Trade Payable (inciuding provisions) |Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 4,673.36 11.587.23
Adani Kandla Bulk Terminal Private Limited 2,38
Adani Hazira Port Private Limited o 0.38
Adani Logistics Limited 3.54
The Dhamra Port Company Limited 6.50 =
Marine Infrastructure Developer Private Limited - 9,81
Terminal Investment Limited Sarl 20,93
MPSEZ Utilities Private Limited 78.10 54.30
Capital Creditors and other payable |Mundra Solar Technopark Private Limited - 1.43
Mundi Limited 7.55 ¥
Refund Liabilities MSC Mediterranean Shipping Ca. S.A. 2.089.51 -
Lease Payable against Right to use  [Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 6.507.09 6,808.42
Land
Short term borrowings Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd - 150.00
Long term borrowings Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 48,4047 98,631.19
Mundi Limited 9,847.92 22,699.50
Interest acerued on deposits MPSEZ Utilities Private Limited 3.69 5.16
Interest payable on borrowings and |Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd 2,673.02 213034
other payables Mundi Limited 2.580.75 177870
Outstanding Corporate Guarantee Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd - USD 8 million

(CG) taken for lenders (refer note 4
below)

(Total Value of CG
USD 150 million)

Note:

(1) Buyer's credit facilities of T Nil (Previous year ¥ 58,925.11 lacs) from banks and bank guarantees availed of ¥ 61.00 lacs ( Previous year ¥ 61.00 lacs) is
availed out of the credit facilities of APSEZL.
(2) All the Key Management Personnel's of the Company except Company Secretary are in employment with the joint venturer and they are paid
remuneration by the respective joint venturer. And the Company Secretary of the Company is in employment with affiliate entity of APSEZL and his
remuneration is also paid by the affiliate of APSEZL.
{3) During the year, the.shareholders of the Company has given a Non-Disposal Undertaking in favour of Security Trustee of the nateholders in respect of
100% issued'and paid up share capital of the Company till final maturity of the Notes.




Adani International Container Terminal Private Limited adanmi
Notes to Financials statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

36 Standard issued but not effective:
As at the date of issue of financial statements, there are no new standards or amendments which have been notified by the MCA but not yet
adopted by the company.

37 Events occurring after the Balance sheet Date
The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of financial

statements to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of subsequent events and transactions in the financial statements,
As of April 27, 2021, there were no subsequent events to be recognized or reported.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financials statements
As per our report of even date
ForSRBCECOLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Firm Registration No.: 324982E / E300003
S.a,wa.uf Meuh— Cy

Chartered Accountants
Capt. Sandeep Mehta

Mﬁn Agrawal

Partner Director Director
Membership No. 56102 DIN: 00897409 DIN: 03040812
Place: Mumbai Place: Ahmedabad
¢ ' 3N
Mayur Shah

Company Secretary
Place: Ahmedabad
Place: Bengaluru

Date: April 27, 2021 Date: April 27, 2021
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